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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREESF

Business Review

The Government of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or
“China”) continued to show strong support for the renewable
energy industry in 2014. To reduce curtailment, the pace
of construction of a number of ultra-high-voltage (“UHV”)
transmission lines has been accelerated. From 2009 to 2013,
four of these lines were built. Reflecting the quickening
construction pace, three additional lines were completed in
2014 alone. In March 2014, Premier Li Kegiang declared a
“War on Pollution” as the PRC government is clearly focusing
on the harm that environmental degradation is having on
the quality of life in China. On 17 May 2014, the National
Development and Reform Committee (“NDRC” or, on regional
level, “DRC”) released guidelines to prevent air pollution.
In this plan, twelve more planned UHV power transmission
lines were announced, with most to be in operation by 2017.
Nine of these will be able to transmit renewable energy. All
twelve lines received preliminary approval in 2014, and three
have already commenced construction. When completed, the
planned UHV lines will boost power transmission capacity by
70 GW, with the clear goal of reducing the country’s reliance
on coal fired power plants.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE” or the
“Company”, and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”)
has continued focusing on its mission to develop, construct,
and operate high quality wind farm projects in 2014. To focus
on wind, the entire minority interest in the non-core waste-
to-energy power plant has been sold to the joint venture
partner, the environmental protection division of China Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Group (collectively
“CECEP”). The transfer of ownership was completed in
September 2014. At the same time, Siziwang Qi Phase Two,
a 49.5 mega-watt (*“MW”), in West Inner Mongolia has been
built and connected to the grid for final testing. This new wind
farm started commercial operation in early 2015 increasing the
Group’s installed capacity by 17%.
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Business Review (continued)

Recognizing and understanding the Chinese Academy of
Sciences’ plan (“CAS plan”) of developing Zhangbei area as a
“special zone” for renewable energy to reduce air pollution in
the Jing-Jiang-Tang region, the Group has started wind testing
for a potential new 100 MW project in Zhangbei, in Hebei
province, which is near the Group’s existing Danjinghe project.
Wind testing was also commenced in Yiyang, in Henan
province. Depending on the test results, these two projects
may become an important part of the Group’s project pipeline.

In relation to operations, safety and reliability of the power
generating equipment in existing wind farms has been the
management’s prime focus. Industrial best practice has been
followed and costs have been contained. However, the wind
resources in 2014 were disappointing. National average wind
utilization in 2014 was only 1,905 efficiency hours, a decline
of 6% compared to 2013. Despite the improvement in the
curtailment situation, the Group only recorded revenue for the
wind farms of HK$97.3 million, which was a 14% decrease
from 2013. The net profit after tax attributable to the equity
holders was HK$14.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, which represents a basic earnings per share of HK0.61
cents.

The Group has total assets of HK$2,576.9 million as at 31
December 2014 and its cash position remains healthy, with
cash in bank of HK$278.3 million. This represents a basic net
asset value per share of HK75 cents.

Prospects

In the coming year, the PRC government is expected to
continue supporting the renewable energy sector, and the
operating environment should continue to be beneficial to the
Group’s development. The construction of the twelve planned
UHV power transmission lines will gradually help resolve the
problem with curtailment. A new Renewable Portfolio Standard
(“RPS”) is expected to be adopted by the PRC government.
It is a renewable energy quota system that requires a fixed
percentage of each province’s energy to come from renewable
energy. Provinces that are unable to meet their assigned
quotas will be penalized. This RPS should provide the proper
financial incentives to invest in infrastructure and further
reduce curtailment.
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Prospects (continued)

An announcement has been made by the NDRC to cut tariff
rates by 4% for new onshore wind farm projects in three out
of four renewable energy zones that are to be approved after
1 January 2015 or start commissioning after 1 January 2016.
Tariff rates will not be changed for existing wind farms. This
cut is negative for future projects; however, the cut was less
than the original expectation of an 8% cut. This does not claw
back the real gains over the last several years of the sharply
declining wind equipment prices, which have dropped 30%
over the past four years and which show no indication of
significant increases in the near future.

In an attempt to stimulate the economy, interest rates have
been cut twice since November 2014. Falling interest rates
is expected which will help reduce the finance costs for the
Group’s future project development.

Following the commercial launch of Siziwang Qi Phase Two
wind farm project in January 2015, the Group will pursue
expansion in a variety of locations where curtailment is
expected to decline or is currently low, such as Zhangbei and
Henan. Wind testing has been conducted. Given Zhangbei is
close to the Danjinghe wind farm, one of the most successful
wind farms of CRE, the Group is expecting wind resources in
this area to be strong. Its proximity to Beijing also makes it
less affected by curtailment and an attractive candidate for
future development. The Group will seek final approval and
start construction accordingly.

In relation to operations, the Group will continue to effectively
manage its wind farm assets. Safety, efficiency and
effectiveness will remain the key focus. The warranty of some
of the wind power equipment will expire by the end of 2015.
The Group therefore intends to liaise with the equipment
suppliers to ensure an uninterrupted supply of spare parts
is secured. Government policies and the market conditions
relating to the renewable energy sector will be monitored so
that any adverse impact can be dealt with in a timely manner.

The management will continue to strengthen the capital base
and may seek strategic alliances to broaden its investment
platform so as to ensure CRE generates the best returns for its
shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2014, China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited (“CRE” or the “Company”, and with
its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) recorded a turnover
in its alternative energy business of HK$97.3 million, a
decrease of 14% from HK$113.7 million for the same period in
2013. Gross profit was only HK$24.0 million; a 43% decrease
from the gross profit of HK$42.2 million in 2013. Poor wind
resources over the year led to such a significant drop.

The Group’s wind farms under the associated companies
faced a similar situation. They only contributed profits of
HK$45.1 million to the Group, which decreased by 23% from
HK$58.8 million in 2013.

In order to focus on the core wind energy business, CRE has
entered into an agreement to sell its entire minority stake
in the Linyi waste-to-energy plant back to the joint venture
partner, the environmental protection division of China Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Group (collectively
“CECEP”) on 30 June 2014. The transfer of ownership
was completed in September 2014, which has led to the
recognition of a loss on disposal, being the difference of the
consideration after taxes and fees minus the carrying book
value of the relevant asset, of HK$1.5 million.

The investment right granted to a private investment firm
TPG Growth (with its subsidiary STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd.
(“STAR"), collectively, the “TPG”) on 23 November 2010
expired this year. A negligible fair value gain was recognized
as a result.

Continuous enhancement in cost control has led to lowering of
the Group’s administrative expenses by 27% from last year’s
HK$29.4 million to HK$21.5 million.

The Group’s net profit after tax attributable to the equity
holders was HK$14.5 million for 2014 (2013: a net profit after
tax of HK$28.2 million). Basic earnings per share was HK0.61
cents as compared to last year basic earnings per share of
HK1.20 cents.
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Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total bank borrowings
was HK$679.8 million as compared to HK$634.5 million in
2013. The difference was mainly due to drawdown of bank
loans amounting to HK$130.0 million for the Siziwang Qi Phase
Two project, repayment of principal instalments of HK$71.3
million for other wind farm projects and currency exchange
difference.

The bank borrowings include interest-bearing Renminbi bank
loans to the Group’s wind farm projects in People’'s Republic
of China (“PRC or “China”), with interest rates fixed at the
People’s Bank of China rates. The maturity dates for the
Group’s outstanding borrowings were spread over the next
ten years. There were HK$89.9 million repayable within one
year, HK$362.1 million repayable within two to five years and
HK$227.8 million repayable after five years.

Convertible notes of principal amount RMB75.0 million
(equivalent to HK$93.5 million) issued in 2012 (“CN 2012")
to HKC (Holdings) Limited (*HKC”, and with its subsidiaries,
collectively, the “HKC Group”) were early redeemed on 12
June 2014 to minimise future finance costs.

The Group’s unrestricted bank deposits and cash were
HK$278.3 million as at 31 December 2014 as compared to
HK$271.1 million in 2013. Such increase represents cash
received from normal operations and a bank loan drawdown
for Siziwang Qi Phase Two project.

As the borrowings and incomes are in Renminbi, no hedging
is required. The Group did not use any financial instruments
for financial hedging purposes during the period under review.

Details of Charges in Group Assets

The Group’s subsidiaries have charged their assets including
wind power equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
trade receivables, worth approximately RMB988.8 million
(equivalent to HK$1,236.5 million) as security for the
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014. Assets, worth
approximately RMB932.2 million (equivalent to HK$1,192.2
million), were charged as at 31 December 2013. The
difference arises from the increase of property, plant and
equipment from Siziwang Qi Phase Two project being pledged
and the depreciation of the Renminbi currency.
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Financial Review (continued)

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was
the total borrowings less unrestricted bank deposits and cash
divided by total equity, was 23% as compared to 26% as at 31
December 2013.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2014 (Nil as at 31 December 2013).

Business Review

China experienced a slowdown in its economic growth in
2014, which led to decrease in energy demand. However,
the PRC government was still fully committed to promoting
clean energy as a means to combat the ever increasing
environmental pollution. Supportive government policies
continued in 2014. A levy has been imposed on non-residential
and non-farming energy users. The funds raised have been
used to pay tariff subsidies for renewable energy operators. In
addition, investment in new infrastructure has been made or
planned to be made, which, together with orderly approval of
new renewable energy projects, is helping gradually to solve
the transmission bottle-neck, and should reduce curtailment
on renewable energy.

Amidst such favourable and stable operating environment, the
Group has progressed in accordance with its business plan.
The construction of Siziwang Qi Phase Two, the second 49.5
mega-watt (“MW”) project of a potential 1000 MW wind farm
complex in the West Inner Mongolia was completed in August
2014. Connection to the power grid and final testing was
conducted during the second half of 2014. Siziwang Qi Phase
Two wind farm started commercial operation at the beginning
of 2015 and will make a contribution to the Group for the year.

As part of our day-to-day management requirements, the
Group’s operational team has put in considerable efforts to
ensure the safety and reliability of existing renewable energy
assets, which comprise of six wind farms with total gross
power generating capacity of 610.5 MW. However, due to
the lack of wind resources in 2014, the performance of the
renewable energy assets in 2014 was not as good as in 2013.
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Business Review (continued)
Mudanjiang and Muling Wind Farms

Mudanjiang and Muling wind farms, located in Heilongjiang
province, have a total of 59.5 MW of wind power capacity. The
wind farms started commercial operation in the fourth quarter
of 2007. The Group holds majority stakes of 86% and 86.68%
respectively. Power despatch was around 63.8 million Kilowatt-
hour (“KWh"), which was equivalent to 1,072 efficiency hours
in 2014. Despite improvement in the curtailment situation, poor
wind resources led to bad performance this year as compared
to last year's 72.1 million KWh (or 1,210 efficiency hours)
power despatch.

Siziwang Qi Phase One Wind Farm

Siziwang Qi Phase One wind farm has a total of 49.5 MW of
wind power capacity and is wholly-owned by the Group. It is
located 16 kilometres (“km”) north of Wulanhua under Siziwang
Qi of Western Inner Mongolia. Commercial operation started in
January 2011. The wind farm is the first phase of a strategic
1000 MW wind farm base for the Group. Siziwang Qi Phase
One wind farm despatched approximately 88.9 million KWh
(an equivalent to 1,795 efficiency hours) in 2014, as compared
to 105.3 million KWh (or 2,130 efficiency hours) in 2013. Poor
wind resources and higher curtailment accounted for this
year’s drop in power despatch.

Danjinghe Wind Farm

The Group has a 40% effective equity interest in the 200
MW Danjinghe wind farm located in Hebei. The majority and
controlling shareholder is the wind division subsidiary of
CECEP, which holds 60%. The entire wind farm, which consists
of three phases, started commercial operation in September
2010. The power despatched in 2014 was approximately 422.7
million KWh (an equivalent to 2,113 efficiency hours). As the
project was obtained through the national tendering process,
the wind farm enjoyed close to zero curtailment. However,
poor wind resources led to poor performance this year as
compared to last year's 507.7 million KWh (or 2,540 efficiency
hours) power despatch.

Changma Wind Farm

Changma wind farm, located in Gansu province, is a joint
venture with the wind division subsidiary of CECEP. The Group
has a 40% effective interest in the project company. The 201
MW wind farm started commercial operation in November
2010. This project, also obtained through national tendering,
enjoyed low curtailment in 2014 and despatched around 354.7
million KWh (an equivalent to 1,765 efficiency hours). However,
poor wind resources led to poor performance this year as
compared to last year’'s 416.5 million KWh (or 2,070 efficiency
hours) power despatch.
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Business Review (continued)

Lunaobao Wind Farm

Lunaobao wind farm is a joint venture with the wind division
subsidiary of CECEP, adjacent to the Danjinghe wind farm.
The Group has a 30% effective equity interest. The wind farm
capacity is 100.5 MW commenced commercial operation in
February 2011. Unlike Danjinghe, Lunaobao wind farm was not
obtained through national tendering process; and, hence, does
not enjoy low curtailment. The power despatched in 2014 was
around 188.9 million KWh (an equivalent to 1,879 efficiency
hours). Despite poor wind resources, the performance in
2014 was better than last year’s 172.9 million KWh (or 1,720
efficiency hours) due to significant reduction in curtailment.
The curtailment rate is expected to fall further in the following
years as the construction of a new high voltage transmission
line is completed.

Outlook

The Group anticipates that 2015 will be a more normal year in
terms of wind utilization. At the same time, the industry should
benefit from continued government support. The Renewable
Portfolio Standard should be announced in 2015 which should
provide additional support for the industry as provinces
will be required to meet certain minimum renewable energy
targets. Curtailment is expected to be reduced given some
improvement in local infrastructure. More significant reduction
in curtailment is anticipated in 2016 and 2017 when most of
the ultra-high-voltage transmission lines are completed and in
operation.

A prudent but pragmatic business plan has been adopted.
In the coming year, the reliability and availability of the
equipment in existing wind farm assets will continue to be the
prime focus. Operational and safety procedures with reference
to the industry’s best practice will be followed to lower the
operational risk and production costs. Because supply
warranties are about to expire, considerable effort will be
made to establish a better liaison with the equipment suppliers
in order to ensure an uninterrupted supply of spare parts and
consumable items, such as lubricants.

Bt #SE B8 ()

ZEER N5

BISBER NG AEPEEZRNERSEIEZE
BIHE  BMESITR NG - NEBEESR E30%
BERRAREL - BNIBEERLNAB1005KE - B
RZTE——FZAKRE - BRIRNEST  &IKE
R A5 IEF BRARBIGIZES Bt - WESSE
RIERE - R ZF — P04 % 1 4188,900,000F K
BEH (HEM879EERFA/NE) - BER N
BREZ BEARERS HZT—NFZRHE
B —FEH 172,900,000 F EBEEH (BE
1,720 S F B/ BE -BEFRERSE
BIETRMNBRT  BEHRSENARAREESCES T

W o

Al 5%

AEEEE  pREENATNE  —T-AFHA—
EERFE—F - A - NEBEMMETEBLK
T TNE R 288 - BTN —F—AFAMA]
BARRESIEE  BREENAZI —ENRE
ABLRREE  AMEIMEBBLERRE - @R
WHERRGNRE  REBREERD BEE-F
—RERZE—EF  EXBOBREHERTRE
RTWHRALE  BIAEFEREBREGEAER

Ao

AEE-EROEABEOLEHE - R - Bl
EWERERNSEERBOTEERAAMY - K
BELETLREERETIER  MITLERZR
2R - TR SRR R AEERA - B R
IREVEEI S - R PIE B LSRR R T AT
BIR - SAHERAE R SR (R0EIE ) B fLRER
B -

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited | Annual Report 2014
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Outlook (continued)

On 31 December 2014, the National Development and Reform
Committee (“NDRC” or, on regional level, “DRC") announced
a reduction on renewable energy feed-in tariff by RMB2 cents.
This will not affect the tariff rate for existing projects but
will affect all new projects approved or constructed starting
January 2015. The Group will closely monitor any unforeseen
effect on the existing wind farm projects; and will carefully
assess, together with other investment risks, the impact
of such reduction on the new projects to be developed.
New projects will only be developed when they are proven
commercially and economically viable.

With Siziwang Qi Phase Two launched in January 2015, the
Group will develop other high quality wind farm projects and
expand its potential project pipeline. Siziwang Qi Phase Three,
a 100 MW wind farm project in West Inner Mongolia, the Phase
One 49.5 MW (out of a potential maximum capacity of 200
MW) wind farm project in Kulun Qi of Tongliao City East Inner
Mongolia, the Phase One 49.5 MW (out of a potential maximum
capacity of 100 MW) wind farm project in Zhangbei of Hebei
province, and the 49.5 MW wind farm project in Yiyang Xian
of Henan province are being considered. Wind testing for a
period of 12 months has started. Depending on the testing
results, these locations may contribute to our project pipeline
for future development and construction.

The Group will also closely monitor the impact of changing
interest rates on the Group’s project bank financing and may
explore other financing alternatives available.

At the moment, the Group intends to remain primarily focused
on wind farms. However, over the long term, the Group is open
to consider investing in other forms of renewable energy if new
technology emerges and they meet our strict investment return
criteria. The Group’s assets portfolio will be properly assessed
and managed. Strategic alliances to secure investment
funding and expansion opportunities will be investigated so as
to create the best return for our shareholders.
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Outlook (continued)

Employees

As at the end of December 2014, the Group’s operations
in Hong Kong and Mainland China employed a total of
70 employees. The Group had also appointed technical
consultants on contract terms for its alternative energy
projects. All employees are remunerated according to the
nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s
overall performance, and the prevailing marketing conditions.

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues
The Group is one of the leading players involved in
environmental protection in China. CRE believes that its
operations can greatly benefit the environment while also
earning profits for its shareholders. The Group has over
600 MW of operating wind farms in Hebei, Heilongjiang,
Gansu, and Inner Mongolia provinces. The electricity that the
Group generated makes it possible to reduce the amount of
electricity generated from coal fired power plants. As a result,
the amount of carbon emissions and pollutants that enter the
atmosphere is reduced.

Through hiring local people to operate the project companies
and providing them with a market compatible remuneration
package and staff benefits, the Group is able to share its
operation returns with the local community and contribute
back to society.

The Group will explore other means to contribute more to the
environment and to society once the Group grows larger and
profitability increases.
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Corporate Governance Practices

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”,
and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is
committed to good corporate governance principles and
practices and its board of directors (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) recognises that it is essential to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees and
uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”),
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the
year ended 31 December 2014, save for the deviations with
considered reasons as explained stated in the following
relevant paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2014 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises seven
Directors with three Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Each
Director possesses expertise and experience and provides
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the
Group and the shareholders as a whole. In addition, the
Company had maintained three Independent Non-executive
Directors which formed at least one-third of the full Board.
Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships,
where applicable, are set out in pages 34 to 39 of this Annual
Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with
the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them are
independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer (*CEO”) should
be separate and performed by different individuals. Under the
current organisation structure of the Company, the functions
of CEO are performed by the Chairman, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric,
with support from the other Executive Directors. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company, and has been effective in discharging its
responsibilities satisfactorily and facilitating the Company’s
operation and business development. The Board will review
the structure from time to time to ensure it continues to meet
the principle and will consider segregation of the roles of
chairman and CEO if and when appropriate.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs and formulating business strategies with a view to
maximising its financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers
to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or
the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company
as defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved
for the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the
terms of reference of the Executive Committee and those
not specifically reserved for the Board are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently. The
management provides monthly management accounts of the
Group to the Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest
performance and financial position.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)
Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. Such
changes will be updated and published in the annual and
interim reports as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of

Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will then be put recommendations to
the Board for decision. Details of the role and function as
well as a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee are set out under the heading of “Nomination
Committee” below.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the nearest to but not less than
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
but are eligible for re-election by shareholders at the annual
general meeting provided that every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. New
appointments to the Board are also subject to re-election by
shareholders at the next following annual general meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
were appointed with no specific term, but are subject to the
aforesaid rotation requirement in the Articles of Association,
accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a
specific term pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG
Code. The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the 2015 annual general meeting are set out on
page 41 of this Annual Report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. All appointments of the members of the Board are
made on merit, in the context of the skills and experience the
Board as a whole requires to be effective. In designing the
Board composition, the Company is committed to equality of
opportunity in all aspects and does not discriminate on the
grounds, including but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age,
cultural and religious background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommended them to the Board for adoption. During the
year, the Committee reviewed the existing composition of the
Board and received and accepted the progress report from
the management in relation to identified business skills and
experience required and their ranking and the action plan for
recruiting new Board member. It also monitored the review of
the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its commitment
to the principle of equal opportunity.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set
up various Board Committees, among others, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
available on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

(continued)

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

EE" (@)
EEESNEEREESEE (4)

FR - EBEEE BRZES REZECRFMZ
BepBRiTTiesH SEERNZSeR2HER
MER TR -

Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings eligible to attend

HESREE SEBEESEREE
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EE®E Exg EREEE yFMEES REEESG
Executive Directors H{TESE
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric =% % 4/4  2/2 (Note Bis¥) 2/2 (Note Biz¥) 1/1 (Note KizF)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 243 %4 4/4  2/2 (Note Bfi3F) N/A i@ N/A TE A
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy ZE R %4 4/4  2/2 (Note Bfi3F) N/A i B N/A i
Non-executive Director F#{TESE
Mr. WANG Sing E#t5c4 1/4 0/4 N/A TiEHA N/A T @A
Mr. HUNG Leung =4 2/4 2/4 N/A @A N/A T @A

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(FMAELEZERESE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITES
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest 58JK 05t 4 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. YU Hon To, David &1i&fE %4 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan HEJIIE4E 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees. Hiat - BITESUARBBEAFNEREREE -
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular ARAFIRAEEHRET EEEEZHHT IR

board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting. For committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman and CEO prior to the
meeting.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

(continued)

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to
the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
date of the meeting. All Directors have access to the Company
Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters.

The Chairman and CEO acknowledged the significance of
promoting a culture of openness and debate among the
Board members. To facilitate the effective contribution of Non-
executive Directors, the Chairman and CEO held a meeting
with Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director without the other Executive Directors present in June
2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
three members namely Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, Mr. YU Hon
To, David and Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and CEO whenever it thinks fit and take
into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid by
comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Committee (continued)
During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy
and structure of Directors including those retired and re-
elected at the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company
and approve the year-end bonus and salary increment of the
Executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his
term of office are set out on page 19. Details of the Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration for the year are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three
members namely Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, Mr. YU Hon To,
David and Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee held one
meeting during the year, and the attendance details of each
member are set out on page 19.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

° reviewing the structure of board committees;
° assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and sufficient number of independent

directors to maintain a balanced board;

° making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

° reviewing the progress report from the management in
relation to the Board Diversity Policy.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Where necessary,
the Nomination Committee could seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time
to align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive
Director, comprises four members namely Mr. TANG Siu Kui,
Ernest, Mr. YU Hon To, David, Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, who are
Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr. WANG Sing,
who is a Non-executive Director.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognised corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external
auditor and two private meetings with the external auditor
without the management’s presence. The attendance details
of each member are set out on page 19. The major work
performed by the Audit Committee during the year included
reviewing interim and annual financial statements, internal
audit reports on the internal controls and risk management
matters, the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance as well as reviewing and recommending re-
appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
designated executive who is accountable to the Audit
Committee about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
unlawful activities, or activities violating the Group’s Code
of Conduct and Business Ethics or otherwise amounting
to serious improper conduct and to ensure protection from
possible retaliation against any of our employees who has
reported concerns in good faith.
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Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with
the key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities,
and oversee the operating performance and financial position
of the Group and all strategic business units. The Committee
comprises all Executive Directors of the Group. Mr. OEI Kang,
Eric is the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, coordinate overall resources, made financial
and operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and
develop investment strategy and policies of the Company and
make relevant recommendations to the Board.

Investment Committee

The Company has established an Investment Committee with
written terms of reference. The Investment Committee, chaired
by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, comprises four members namely Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, Mr. WONG
Jake Leong, Sammy who are Executive Directors, and Mr.
WANG Sing, who is a Non-executive Director.

The principal responsibilities of the Investment Committee are
to, inter alia, review and approve the Group’s material capital
expenditures, monitor the execution of the investment on an
ongoing basis, review and approve periodically policies and
guidelines governing the Group’s investment portfolio, and
monitor compliance with those policies.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company and executives, is delegated with responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by
the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day
operations of the Group. Executive Directors and executives
meet regularly to review the performance of the businesses of
various business units of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate
overall resources and make financial and operation decisions.
The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of
management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained
confirmation from all Directors that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 60 to 61.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
the auditor amounted to approximately HK$1,650,000 and
HK$430,000 respectively. The non-audit services mainly
consist of interim results review services.
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Directors’ Training

For the year ended 31 December 2014, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The training
programmes included seminars and courses, reviewed the
updated laws, rules and regulations and materials on topics
relevant to the director’'s duties and responsibilities. Directors
are requested to provide the Company with their respective
training record. The areas of training received by each Director
are set out below:

B
REBEE-Z—NE+T_A=+—HBILFE  2BF
FE2EFEZXER  UBERITENAE LK
BE o IBHIFT B R EMA & LRE - mEASIER
BARROIAR BN ENETBIERBE ZEF -
EFARARTRIE A ZEIEE - REFEE
RZIBIBEEHAT -

Areas of Training

gl ER
Directors’
duties/
Corporate Law and  governance
strategy and regulatory practices Risk
Name of Directors business compliance EZBE  management Others
BEpR CEXBRER ZERERER ERER RREE Hity
Executive Directors $I{TES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric &M% 4% v v v/ v/
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 2434 v v v/ v/
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy ZHER k4 v v v/ v/
Non-executive Director i {TES
Mr. WANG Sing T#%4% v
Mr. HUNG Leung =564 v
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)
(FMELZEREE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B F#TEE
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest ¥Jk80% & v v v/ v/
Mr. YU Hon To, David 8125 5%t & v/ v/ v v/
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan B EJII %% v/ v/ v v/

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars regarding the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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Internal Controls N BRES =

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control EFEBHEERAEE NFEERS  WigstH
system and reviewing its effectiveness, while management B - MERERI & BRI W*BW% TAELA
is charged with the responsibility to design and implement EEEBRIREFE - AEBDRILECOSO (the
the internal control system to manage risks and compliance. =~ Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
The Group has in place a framework of internal controls that  Treadway Commission)iE 28 — Bz A & 85 2 48
is consistent with the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring # ' FEWMT :

Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework as

illustrated below:

Control Environment

EEERIR

° Set the tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.
BZAKREERER  LORLESNEESBRERRH -

° Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, authority and responsibility.
BEBEARST - EEEE BELE)  BERIRETSHEESEHEE -

° Foundation for all other components of internal controls.

TERAE E M M BB BT AR AR BB 0 O LR -

Risk Assessment

| B = Ak

o Identification and analysis of the key risks to achieving the Group’s objectives, including the risks
relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment, are conducted regularly, forming the
basis for determining control activities.
TR RS TEERAEE B ZABENEERR (BEEHEERELRTECHRAR) - WAL IERHIF B
FRYERY -

Control Activities

ERES

o Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions
are taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
SIEBERET  WREBEZETRESABITURKEVETHEREI X ERNEEERRE2RER -

o Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.

EPEERERE B RE - BRURR - BERD  EERE - FEUEH| - SUHTRE MRS -
Information and Communication
EMRBA

° Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.
BRI - BRI MEE A TR E R
° Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.
BUASEEZH 2EARBEINRA T 2B BEE -
° Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties relating
to the Group.
HBRSMEAEEEEFHENEREHRIETRRLBBERE -

Monitoring

° Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.
B B BT (4 B ARV AE R

o Management and supervisory activities.
ERRERTIE-

° Internal audit activities.
NRBEZ TAE -
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group are transparent to all. The Group
strives to conduct all business affairs based on good
business ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal
Code of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated
to all staff members. We aim to build risk awareness and
control responsibility into our culture and regard them as the
foundation of our internal control system.

The internal control system is designed to manage the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We maintain an effective internal audit
function, the Internal Control and Risk Management (“ICRM”)
Department, whose main features include:

(i) independence from operational management;
(i)  fully empowered auditors with access to all data and
every operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;
and

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with
significant risks or where significant changes have been
made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls. Heads of the
departments, projects and business units regularly review and
analyse the key risks associated with achieving the objectives
of their particular departments, activities and businesses to
provide reasonable assurance that internal controls are both
embedded and effective within their areas of accountability.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Processes
The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control
system through the following:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

An organisation structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
are taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules
and the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEO, and carries out independent
reviews on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system in accordance with its annual audit
plan approved by the Audit Committee. Key audit
findings and implementation progress of internal
control recommendations are regularly reported to the
Board through the Audit Committee. Head of the ICRM
Department also serves as the contact person under the
Whistleblowing Guideline of the Company.

A EBEEIE ()
EEREF
SEECRBTIER  #EB1T28RAANLEIE S
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(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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Internal Controls (continued)

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a
certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope
of this review covers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the control system’s
performance of the Group. External auditor also reports on any
control issues identified in the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
at least once each year and reports to the Board on such
reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s internal control system effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2014. No
significant areas of concern that might affect the operational,
financial, and compliance controls and risk management
function of the Group were identified.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and
other statutory regulations with regard to the timely and
proper disclosure of inside information, announcements
and financial disclosures and authorises their publication
as and when required.

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(iii) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and CEO on
Board or committee matters. He is an employee of HKC Group
who serves both the Company and its holding company, HKC.
All Directors have direct access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary for the ongoing discharge of their
duties and responsibilities. For the financial year ended 31
December 2014, the Company Secretary took more than 15
hours of relevant professional training organised by the Stock
Exchange and various professional bodies.

Constitutional Documents of the

Company
The Company has published its updated and consolidated
version of Memorandum and Articles of Association at the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the
year, there was no alteration on the constitutional documents
of the Company.
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General Meeting

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 30 May 2014 (the “2014 AGM”). The Chairman and CEO
chaired the 2014 AGM. The external auditor attended the 2014
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2014
AGM is set out in the table below:

BRERE

ARR E—EBRRBFAEGR_FT—NEFRAA=1
R8T ([T -—MFERRBFRE]) - TFERTT
BAHEET T NFRRBFASIE - IMNER
BTG T -OFRRBFRE - WREFH
T REEREZRERAR - FHBRREEH
B AVA R i I

SEEN-T-MEREBEA T B ELER
T :

Name of Directors EEHA 2014 AGM Attended
HE-_Z-NEFRRAEFAE

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric =M AE 11
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RLIRIE 11
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy HEREE 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. WANG Sing ok 0/1
Mr. HUNG Leung SRS AE

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing) (IMALEZEREE) 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTESE
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest BIKB A 11
Mr. YU Hon To, David ENEE LA 1/1
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan ME)I%&4E 1/1

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director are
required to attend general meetings pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of
the CG Code. All Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director were encouraged to attend the general meeting to inter-face with
shareholders of the Company but one Non-executive Director was not in
a position to attend the 2014 AGM due to overseas commitment.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting

and put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders can put forward their proposals at
an extraordinary general meeting. Procedures for
the shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting is provided for under
Article 58 of the Articles of Association.

Under Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
member(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition (“Requisitionists”). The written request
must state the resolution, preferably accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution for the Company’s reference and consideration,
signed by the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company will convene an extraordinary general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.

Procedures for election of directors of
the Company

The procedures™ for the shareholders of the Company
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at www.cre987.com.

IR R AE R

BREREBRRR GBI AL RN
REREEBZEF

BRARBREIAGRZRE ZEH - 4
HERARIESSHIIRBANARRRERAMH
BRFRIAG 2i2FF °

RIBAHERMRIESSIE - EAFFEERLQT
BERBRAT IR D2 —2ZBR - GE8
MEFSARAMERLBEAR - UEBEX
EXgARRRENIARE  BUEBEZFEK
JIRZER (2FA)) - HFMBRBZ2F
BRECZEHZFLAIARRER KA
TER—TFEREZZIRBRMLEEZ
RALE - ARARRZEREE °

EHEFVARRARNAZ AN ER » it
REBNBERDEREB75REFH L —
Hng (BERBRHEARRTME)

ApmzEERBPERD R ([RDBF
DE]) BEEREFE - RRMDBF 7 EER
EFREERFTAEFREK  ARRHREE
2FEMERABFREBRERIAE - WRE
FELEEREARNRATAZBRRELTR
A -

HERQNAESEZREF

AR REZHBTMAALTEHTARAE
F2RFARARQ BB uwww.cre987.com
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of
the annual reports and interim reports of the Company are
distributed to its shareholders in accordance with statutory
and regulatory requirements and also to interested parties
recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available on the Company’s website
at www.cre987.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The Chairman
and CEO, other members of the Board, the Chairmen of
the relevant Board Committees and the external auditor of
the Company attended the annual general meeting to inter-
face with, and answer questions from the shareholders of the
Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail info@cre987.com

Fax (852) 2722 1323
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENeREERE

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric

(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 44, has been appointed as
Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company since 10 April 2008. He also holds several
directorships in other members of the Group and the chairman
of the Investment Committee and the Executive Committee
of the Company. Mr. OEl was educated in the USA and
obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Economics (with a minor in
Electrical Engineering), and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. Earlier in his career, he worked with Peregrine
Securities Ltd. and PCCW Limited in Hong Kong, the LG
Group in Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr.
OEl is currently an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of HKC (Holdings) Limited (*HKC”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “HKC Group”), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the controlling shareholder
of the Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
HKC. Mr. OEl is also a director and a shareholder of Claudio
Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of HKC.

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 51, has been appointed
as Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 1 December 2008. He joined the Group in
April 2008 as Qualified Accountant of the Company. He also
holds several directorships in other members of the Group
and is a member of the Investment Committee and the
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG is a certified
practising accountant of CPA Australia. Mr. LEUNG obtained a
Master’'s Degree in Business from RMIT University of Australia.
He has over 20 years’ experience in auditing and finance
management with an international audit firm and other major
conglomerates in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
LEUNG was a director of internal control and risk management
of HKC. He is currently also a director of certain subsidiaries
of HKC.

=Ml L4

(BITEE - TEFTHAEE)
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REWNBARGHE BEERIEE]) (KRR ZE
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Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 54, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since 1 January 2014.
He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group. Mr.
WONG is the Investor Relations Director of the Group, and is
currently serving as a member of the Investment Committee
and the Executive Committee. He is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Since 2007, Mr. WONG has joined
HKC, and is an Executive Director of HKC. He also serves as
a Director of certain subsidiaries of the HKC Group.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor's degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. Before Yale, he worked as a
petroleum geologist at Sohio Petroleum. After Yale, Mr. WONG
became an investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New
York, where he was involved in project finance. He moved to
Hong Kong with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety
of corporate finance activities, including some of the first H
share IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity
research at Societe Generale where he was in charge of the
research efforts in Shanghai; and later as vice President and
head of China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before
joining HKC, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer
for DVN Holdings Limited (now known as “Frontier Services
Group Limited”), where he was involved in fund raising and
introducing strategic investors to the company.
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Mr. WANG Sing

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. WANG Sing, aged 51, has been appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company since 8 June 2011. He is
also a member of the Investment Committee and the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. WANG is a partner of TPG
(“TPG”), a private equity investment firm, an affiliate of Star
Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“Star Butterfly”), which has substantial
interests in the preference shares of the Company. Mr. WANG
is the Co-Chairman of TPG Greater China and Head of TPG
Growth North Asia. Prior to joining TPG, Mr. WANG was Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of TOM Group
Limited. He spent seven years at Goldman Sachs in both New
York and Hong Kong in various positions including Executive
Director and Head of China High Technology in Hong Kong.
He was a founding member of the firm’s Asian private equity
team and headed their China Investment Projects. Before
Goldman Sachs, he was a Manager at HSBC Private Equity in
Hong Kong and a strategic consultant with McKinsey & Co., in
Chicago, U.S.A.

Mr. WANG graduated from Yunnan University, China with a
Bachelor degree in Science and holds a Master of Science
degree in forestry and its relation to land use, a Master and a
Bachelor of Arts degree in philosophy, politics and economics
from Oxford University. He is currently a non-executive director
of MIE Holdings Corporation (stock code: 1555 and listed on
the Stock Exchange). He is also the Chairman of Amerinvest
Group of Companies and a Standing Committee Member of
the 11th Yunnan Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.
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Mr. HUNG Leung

(Alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

Mr. HUNG Leung, aged 40, is a Principal at TPG (“TPG”") with
over 16 years’ experience in investment banking and direct
investments in Greater China. Since joining TPG in May 20086,
Mr. HUNG has led a number of investments in China.

Prior to joining TPG, Mr. HUNG was deputy general manager
of business development and executive assistant to the chief
executive officer of TOM Group Limited (stock code: 2383),
a Chinese language media conglomerate listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, where he was responsible for
leading and executing media and internet related investments
and partnership transactions across Greater China. Mr. HUNG
started his career in investment banking with Barclays Capital
where he took part in the financing and structuring of certain
landmark infrastructure deals and pioneer private equity
investments for healthcare and internet/broadband companies
in China.

Mr. HUNG holds a bachelor of science degree in business
administration (magna cum laude) from the University of
Southern California.

Mr. HUNG is also an alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing, a
non-executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation (stock
code: 1555), listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. HUNG was a non-executive director of China NT Pharma
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1011), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, aged 64, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
10 April 2008. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. TANG is a solicitor in private practice
and at present a partner and a consultant of two law firms
respectively. Mr. TANG graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor's Degree of Laws and is admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Australia. He is also a
China Appointed Attesting Officer by the Ministry of Justice of
China.
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Mr. YU Hon To, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 67, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
10 April 2008. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. YU is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in the
fields of auditing, corporate finance, financial investigation
and corporate management. He was formerly a partner of
an international accounting firm and is the Chairman of MCL
Financial Group Ltd, a Hong Kong-based financial advisory
and investment firm.

Mr. YU is currently also an independent non-executive director
of the following companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, namely China Resources Gas Group Limited
(stock code: 1193), Great China Holdings Limited (stock code:
141), Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169),
Keck Seng Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code:
184), Media Chinese International Limited (which is also listed
in Malaysia; Hong Kong stock code: 685, Malaysia stock code:
5090), One Media Group Limited (stock code: 426), Playmates
Holdings Limited (stock code: 635), Bracell Limited (formerly
known as “Sateri Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 1768) and
Synergis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2340). Mr. YU is also
an independent non-executive director of New Century Asset
Management Limited, the manager of New Century Real Estate
Investment Trust (stock code: 1275), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. YU was an independent non-executive director of China
Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Limited (stock
code: 1798) and VXL Capital Limited (stock code: 727) (now
known as “Crown International Corporation Limited”) (both
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange)
and TeleEye Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 8051).
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Mr. TIAN Yuchuan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, aged 50, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
23 April 2013. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
Beijing Foreign Studies University. Mr. TIAN also obtained an
executive education program certificate from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Management in 2009 and completed
a program in leadership and public policy at University
of Oxford in 2012. He has over 28 years of experience in
multinational business, corporate management, international
equity investment and corporate finance. Mr. TIAN is the
executive director and chief executive officer of CITIC Dameng
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1091), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also held senior
positions in several subsidiaries of CITIC Group between
1986 and 2004. Mr. TIAN was employed as the Senior Vice
President, Corporate Strategy and Development and served as
a director of some subsidiaries of HKC between April 2006 to
March 2008.

Mr. TIAN was a non-executive director of CITIC Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

The directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) have
pleasure in presenting to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities and Geographical

Analysis of Operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activity of the Group is alternative energy business.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associated
companies are set out in pages 136 to 138 of the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance
for the year ended 31 December 2014 by geographical and
business segments is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 62 to 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Convertible

Preference Shares

Details of movements in the share capital and convertible
preference shares of the Company during the year are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2014, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands (as revised), amounted to HK$1,242.95
million (2013: HK$1,258.45 million).

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
139 to 140.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donations (2013: Nil).

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Sing (with Mr. HUNG Leung as his alternate)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”), Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, Mr. WANG Sing
and Mr. YU Hon To, David will retire from office by rotation in
accordance with Article 85 of the Articles of Association and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election to serve for
another term.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company
considers all of them to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Share Option Schemes

Share options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme was adopted on
27 May 2008 (the “CRE Option Scheme”). Particulars of the
CRE Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
calibre Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”),
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) or consultant of any members of the Group or
any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, have contributed or will contribute to the growth
and development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

(c) Maximum number of shares available for

issue

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the CRE Option Scheme is 76,353,475
shares which represent 3.24% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report.

EERBESH

BRBRRAFAEBRET EEMBRRNFK
EEMMB AR LAKRB NN —FARMNEE
CEERERIN) FREIEZRBAL -

BT E

RARZERRE
ARRRZZBTNFRAZ T+ RIRNA A ERE
AE ([PEBERERENE]) - PEBLRE
IRERRERT I 2 FIFESImMT

(a) BH
TEANARERBEBAZABRAL
(FHEETX) @ URRS|I S AEELE T
Ak B AR ERA RN TMEE (R4
B MeBAGBEZANEE  EhREH
BETABHBAL BRETIMEAARZ
BAERER  BURBREUAEENRE
ERVEEREL Y EAEH k55
BREHZESERATREASEBRRT
BERY EERNRSRERIELEH -

(b) E&EB/AL
EE22RIBERAELABEHARER
TAREERZERERERBAERZAE
BETEMKEAREARERR ZEME
B (THEBIFR) SRTRABHTE
AB KB B2 (BEATES  FHT
BEERBIUFRITES) HER -

() ATRBTROZESHE

RIETHE A RERETE AT HEITZA
DA 4288 576,353,4750% - HERAR
RIRANFHTIZ B E 2 B 31TIAE.24% -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of the Company (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

TEBLRRREGRAR |

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible

Person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and not
exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be

taken up under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an

option must be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option

and amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription

price of an option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Remaining life

CRE Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options of the Company (continued)
Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option

ERES @

RRT Z2BRAE ()
79 - RIRA B A A RAR AR S B E H  R

Scheme during the year are as follows: ZEHEBFBWT
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Names Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
Hog-mE HNog-mE
-A-8 Bik/  fzA=-A SRARE
% BHHE HATE BEM Bk BAH HAGE  RHEE k8 (&7
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Director) Personal 825,000 - - (825,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0.764
DEBEL (55) N 2-F5-A1H 19 January 2014
Sk e
FIE-ME-ATNE
1,375,000 - - - 1375000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0.764
Z5-%5-A-1H 19 January 2015
e i
E-3-15-A1hA
An Ex-Director Personal 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 1September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0570
L (1N ZE-RERA-H 31 August 2014
R-CEAA-RE
“R-mENAZT-R
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) - 1September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0570
ZZ-SERA-A 31 August 2015
B-IZENR-RE
Z3-R§M\A=1+-A
Total 57 6,200,000 - - 4,825,000) 1,375,000

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31

December 2014 under the CRE Option Scheme.

B EXHEEIN  REE_Z—NF+_R=1—
BILFE - SEEMBREREDEBERRER

REETEIER L - 1718 - A KRM -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of

the Company

The existing share option scheme of HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC”) was adopted on 16 June 2006 (the “HKC Option
Scheme”). Particulars of the HKC Option Scheme are set out
below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

TEBLRRREGRAR |

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and
attract human resources that are valuable to HKC and
its subsidiaries (the “HKC Group”) or any entity in
which any member of the HKC Group holds an equity
interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to
recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the HKC Group or Invested
Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain
ownership interest in HKC and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
HKC Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the HKC Group or any Invested Entity who,
in the sole discretion of the HKC board, have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the
HKC Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for

issue

The total number of shares of HKC available for issue
under the HKC Option Scheme is 676,644,707 shares
which represent approximately 5.83% of the issued share
capital of the HKC as at the date of this Annual Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible

Person

The total number of shares of HKC issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of HKC in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of HKC must not exceed 0.1% of
the shares of HKC in issue and not exceed HK$5
million in aggregate value.

B -NEER
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FERIRD A B676,644, 7070 0 HERE
BEERAFRTEBHZEETREY
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BEEERATERER LR
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(T EETERHERITE) B ETREM
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0.1% R 2 {ET15# 385,000,000 7T °

(if)

45



46

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE&#fi& =

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of
the Company (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(V)

Period within which the shares must be

taken up under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
board of HKC may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an

option must be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of HKC
must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option

and amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription

price of an option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares of HKC as stated in daily
quotations sheet on the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares of
HKC as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of
HKC.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will
expire on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BEREE )
Share options of associated corporation of AATMEBEE 2 BRE (&)

the Company (continued)
Movements of share options granted to the Directors under the ~ FRA @ REZERZRBBREABIR FEF 2B

HKC Option Scheme during the year are as follows: BEFBEET
Number of share options
BhEsA
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
a1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Narme of Directors Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-%-RE R-%-BE
-A-8 B/ fzAzt-B SRR
g3 BEME AR ERH B BRH WAGE  RHBE 8 (#7)
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric Personal 49,757 - - - 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1,066
Bl [N 5575t ZA1RA 14 December 2016
“ERLETOATERE
E-EZATRE
1,249,5% - - - 124959 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZERFtZATEA 14 December 2016
ZEN\ET2ATRAR
& LR
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
Z2EN5ZR-A 31 January 2018
“EENECR-RE
Z%-\5-RA=1-8
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
ZEEN\EZR-R 31 January 2018
“E-2F-f-R%
“3-0§-Az1-A
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“EE\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“BfA-RE
“3-7§-A=t-8
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
“3-SEMATEA 14 April 2016
“E-MERATREE
“E-EmATRA
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
Z3-=FMATHA 14 April 2017 (Note)
3-15MATRAZE
2-EMATRA ()
5,000,000 = = = 5000000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269

Z5-=FRATHA 14 April 2018 (Note)
ZE-REmATIAE
2-\EmATEA (Wi
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BiREE )
Share options of associated corporation of RARMEBEE 2 BRE (&)
the Company (continued)

Number of share options
EREHA
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
a1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 214 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-Z-mF H-%-BE
-B-A Bi#/ ToR=t-B SRiRE
B2 BENE AR B8 gfif BAH HATE  EHEH 8 (&7
Mr. O Kang, Eric Family 749,757 - - - 749,757 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
-t P4 “ESREt-RtRA 14 December 2016
“ERtETCATRAZ
ZERETZATOA
1,249,596 - - - 1249596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZEEETZATRA 14 December 2016
“B5/\Et-AT1RZ
ZE-~ETZATEA
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.4
ZEE/EZR-A 31 January 2018
Z55NEZA-BE
:!if*/mﬁfﬂ E*‘*E
599,806 - - - 509,806 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.4
ZEE/EZR-A 31 January 2018
ZE-TECf-RE
Z5-\5-A=1-H
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.4
Z3E/EZR-A 31 January 2018
Z3--EZR-AE
Z5-\5-A=1-H
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
ZE-FMATHA 14 April 2016
“E-RERATRAZ
Z5-~EmATEA
1,500,000 - - - 1500000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
ZE--EMATHA 14 April 2017 (Note)
“E-1EmATRAE
ZE-tEmATEA (K
2,500,000 - - - 2500000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269

ZE--ERATHA 14 April 2018 (Note)
“E-7ERATRAE
ZE-/\EWATEA (K
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BEREE )
Share options of associated corporation of AATMEBEE 2 BRE (&)
the Company (continued)

Number of share options
BhEsA
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
a1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
Hog-mE H-g-mg
-A-8 B/ fzAZt-B BRiTRE
B34 BifE HAE BEM [Blifid BN HATE  BhHAH L] (E7)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel Personal 1,599,484 - - - 1,599,484 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
2hnk BA “IIAETATEA 14 Deceroer 2016
“ERLEIIAHERS
ZE-NETZATRA
2,665,807 - - - 2,665,807 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“REIRETOATER 14 December 2016
ZEE\ETZATRAR
“E-ETZATRA
533,160 - - - 533,160 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ZERN\EZR-R 31 January 2018
“TENECR-RZ
ZE-)\&-A=1-H
799,741 o S o 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1242
ZFE\5-8-H 31 January 2018
ZEFE2A-RE
“E-)\§-A=1-H
1,332,903 - - - 1332903 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1202
ZFE\5-5-H 31 January 2018
“E-FIA-EE
ZE-)\&-A=1-H
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 6,664,518 = = = 6,664518 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1726
EHRRE A “EERLELACA 2.0uly 2017
ERtETCATREE
o
3,332,259 - - - 3332259 3July 2007 15 December 2008 to 1726
“ERLEEAZRA 2.uly 2017
ER)\ETZATREE
o
3,332,259 - - - 3332259 3July 2007 15 December 2009 to 1726
ERLEEAZRA 2.uly 2017
“$ENEToATERE
e
1,332,903 - - - 1332903 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
Z2E\EZR-R 31 January 2018
ZERNECZA-RE
I

TEBLERRREGRAR | ZF-HFFH
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BiREE )
Share options of associated corporation of RRTFEEEE 2 B IRE ()
the Company (continued)

Number of share options
fied ¢
Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding at price
a1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2014 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
Ho%-RE H-%-p%
-B-8 Bi#/ TIR=t-B SRORE
] BHHE AR BEE Bk BAX HATE  RHEH i (&%)
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy (continued) ~ Personal 1,099,354 - - - 1999354 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1242
BERRE(S) fAA Z330\§2A-A 31 January 2018
“REECf-RE
Z%-N§-R=t-8
3,332,259 - - - 3332259 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1242
ZER/EZR-A 31 January 2018
“3--FZR-HE
Z5-Nf-R=1-B
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
Z5-Z5MATEA 14 April 2016
Z3-RERATRAE
ZE-7ERATRE
1,500,000 - - - 1500000 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
ZR-CEMATRA 14 April 2017 (Note)
“Z-nEmATRAE
ZE-tERATEA ()
2,500,000 - - - 2500000 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
ZE-FRATHA 14 April 2018 (Note)
2 fmATRAE
2 N\EMATEE ()
Total 57 54,922,057 - - - 54,922,067

Note: The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the attainment ~ A7:# : R B AFEEE SRR ETSMETZ2REBEEZ
of the performance target as determined by the board of directors of & HREEBRATIIE -
HKC.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted to the BREXHEZREN  REBEZZ—NF+ZA=+—
Directors, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed by the Directors HIEFE @ HEERWERZEESERBRET S
during the year ended 31 December 2014 under the HKC MEZEFRHERE  TEEFELITE  FHEER
Option Scheme. RS HKR -
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the
Company were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and

EERNRFZER
RZE—NF+-A=+—H SEFRAQAE
ZITBABRARASHEMEEER (FERF
F R EEED ([BH RAIEEG]) EXVEL) 2’
%« BEARN REHFFEB W E LN AR RIRE
BHERAEGPIEIEREAETFE 2 ZEMZ
PR RARR - RERBEARRRFTERMNS R _ETRA
Mk +HEB MR ITAESETIELFR D IZEST
Bl ([TZ%#<P8]) 2B EMEARRF M2 #
WEKBIT

(i) REQXTRDREBEKREG 24T

underlying shares of the Company: B
Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying existing issued
shares of  share capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company the Company
AARRBR EAARREE#HT
EERE EatE HERGBE RAMYE D
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric Corporate! 1,702,525,811 72.252
ML NCIE
Personal? 2,175,086 0.092
&l A2
Joint® 24,724,353 1.049
RS
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel Personal* 1,375,000 0.058
REGRIFE EN
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

(continued)
(i) Long positions in the shares and

BEENRBHFEZ2ER @)

(i) M=
B

=)

(ii)

underlying shares of the Company:
(continued)

Notes:

1.

Since as at 31 December 2014, HKC was held as to approximately
43.40% by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”) (via its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and
Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”)), a company owned as
to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his
wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which
HKC is interested. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
includes (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares of the Company
held by HKC; (ii) an interest in 150,918,990 shares of the Company
held by Creator; and (iii) an interest in 276,065,897 shares of the
Company held by Genesis.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 2,175,086 shares of the Company.

The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
24,724,353 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, Mrs.
OEl Valonia Lau.

The personal interest of Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel represents
an interest in 1,375,000 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by the Company as detailed in “Share options of the
Company” section above.

Long positions in the shares and
underlying shares of associated
corporation of the Company:

DNRIRAD RABRAR A2 2 4

M-ZE—ME+=—F=+—H HREBER
fiClaudio Holdings Limited ([Claudio) #¥
B H143.40% (BREZENBARAIEEE
BRAF ([AIE]D REASEEBRAR ([#
gl1)) - MClaudiol E Ml St £ H50% * Bk
T50%AEE s EFRZ LA - BERT
FRRARBEEREAREZ 2R —HAAT]
B&in P HE A A o ERISE A 2 AR BIE()
B RERATH1,275,540,9248 K 2 7R 15 #E
50 (i)BIE FT35150,918,9900% 4N A & B 15 1
5 ¢ K (iii)ZE Al FT$5276,065,897 8% A A B i 5

_»
1
E/ ‘/

= Ml 5 £ 2 8 AR 18 702,175,086/ & A )
f&n i 2 o

HREEZ HRESERFEREZZTFRAEL
T HEEHE 224,724,353 AR EPRADHERS ©

REUHEEZEAAERER X [ART 2B
A& HE | —EPFTEEIR - ANA RIATIR B AR AES &
21,375,000 A8 B A& 1) #e 2 o

(i) RAQTFEBEZER G RAEER

2R :

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying existing issued
Name of shares of the  share capital of
associated Nature of associated the associated
corporation Name of Directors interest corporation corporation
HAEBEERE
HBEE 2 RO KR ERITRABN
TR L E BB EENS EEME HERDHE Batt
HKC Mr. OEI Kang, Eric Corporate! 5,684,439,135 49.022
BREER e Pt NGIR
Personal? 50,515,788 0.436
&l A2
Joint® 147,430,613 1.271
HE?S
Family* 8,998,705 0.078
ENi- S
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel Personal® 6,931,095 0.060
REREE (EN
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy  Personal® 24,993,552 0.216
=EREE (EN
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

(continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares and
underlying shares of associated

corporation of the Company: (continued)

Notes:

The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents (i) an
interest in 2,035,222,450 shares of HKC and an interest in
68,903,400 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by
HKC held by Creator; and (ii) an interest in 2,997,332,404 shares
of HKC and an interest in 582,980,881 underlying shares in
respect of warrants issued by HKC held by Genesis. Both Creator
and Genesis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, a company
owned as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining
50% by his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 30,430,902 shares of HKC, an interest in 6,086,181 underlying
shares in respect of warrants issued by HKC and an interest in
13,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by
HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated corporation of the
Company” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 122,858,844 shares of HKC and an interest in 24,571,769
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by HKC jointly held
with his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau.

The family interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
8,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by HKC
to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau as detailed in “Share options of associated
corporation of the Company” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel represents
an interest in 6,931,095 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated
corporation of the Company” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy represents
an interest in 24,993,552 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated
corporation of the Company” section above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company held any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or

Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ Interests
in Securities” above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing

Businesses

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are
executive directors of HKC, and Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
is director of certain subsidiaries of HKC. One of the business
activities of the HKC Group is alternative energy business in
the PRC. Apart from the Company’s business, HKC Group has
an interest in a business in ethanol energy business in the
PRC. Having considered that HKC’s investment in the ethanol
energy business is non-core and the business is dormant at
present, the Company can operate its business independently.

Mr. WANG Sing is a partner of TPG. TPG has an interest in
Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (Stock Code: 712) which
is engaged in alternative energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’

Interests in Contracts of Significance
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this Report and “Related Party Transactions”
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statement, no contract
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Securities

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

TERRRESF 2D

R-Z-—WOE+-_A=1t—H8 RADQFREE
7 R B IGRGIFHIB6IHRRERTIFE 2 B MATAC
B UATAL (BEFHARBETEZTHRAERMN)
RARRZ Bfn kAR h A ERSAE

REQXTARGRAEBRG 2HFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares and  the existing issued
underlying shares share capital
Name Nature of interest of the Company of the Company
AR B R RIEE EARARRES#T
wE S EB ERMtE K5 & E RAMYE D
HKC Beneficial owner! 1,275,540,924 54.132
EEER EmfEB A
Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau Family? 1,704,700,897 72.344
BB4t K k2
Joint® 24,724,353 1.049
HE?S
Claudio Corporate* 1,702,525,811 72.252
NN
Genesis Corporate® 276,065,897 11.716
=3 G
Creator Corporate® 150,918,990 6.405
BlE NG
Mr. David BONDERMAN Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
David BONDERMAN%: 4 ~al
Mr. James G. COULTER Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
James G. COULTER%t 4 NG
Tarrant Capital Advisors, Inc. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
~al
Tarrant Advisors, Inc. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
NI
TPG Ventures Professionals, LP. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
NGl
TPG Ventures Partners, LP. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
NGl
TPG Ventures Holdings, LLC Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
nal
TPG Star Advisors, LLC Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
NS
TPG STAR GenPar. LP. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
NGIK
TPG STAR. LP. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
NG
STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. Corporate’ 300,000,000 12.731
nal
FEBEERREBRAE | —E-NFEFR
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Securities (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. The beneficial interest of HKC includes an interest in 1,275,540,924
shares of the Company held by HKC.

2. Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same parcel
of shares of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is taken to be
interested (as detailed in “Directors’ Interests in Securities” section
above).

3. The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in
24,724,353 shares of the Company jointly held with Mr. OEI Kang, Eric.

4. Claudio is beneficially interested in 43.40% of the issued share capital of
HKC (via its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis) and thus,
is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares and underlying
shares of the Company in which HKC is interested. In addition, as Creator
and Genesis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, and thus, Claudio
is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company
in which Creator and Genesis are interested.

5. The corporate interest of Genesis includes an interest in 276,065,897
shares of the Company.

6. The corporate interest of Creator includes an interest in 150,918,990
shares of the Company.

7. The corporate interest includes an interest in 300,000,000 non-voting
convertible preference shares of the Company carrying rights to convert
into shares of the Company at the initial conversion rate of 1 preference
share to 1 share (subject to adjustment) held by STAR Butterfly Energy,
Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than Directors and
chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which are required to record in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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7. NEIEZ B IEHSTAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd.#82
300,000,000/ < 2~ &) & % SEAE AT R AR B 50 R+ B A5
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Connected Transactions

The Company and HKC entered into a subscription agreement
dated 2 November 2012 relating to the issue of a convertible
note in principal amount of RMB75 million at an issue price
equivalent to its principal amount (2012 Convertible Note”)
by the Company to HKC. The 2012 Convertible Note, bearing
interest at 6.4% per annum, is due three years from the date
of its issuance and is convertible into a total of 135,584,558
shares of the Company at an initial price of HK$0.68 per share
(subject to adjustment).

HKC is a controlling shareholder and hence a connected
person of the Company, the issue of 2012 Convertible Note
and allotment of new shares of the Company upon conversion
of the 2012 Convertible Note constituted connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the proposed issue of 2012 Convertible
Note were set out in the circular dated 23 November 2012.
The 2012 Convertible Note was issued to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HKC on 18 December 2012.

The 2012 Convertible Note was early redeemed on 12 June
2014.

Financial Assistance and Guarantee to

Affiliated Companies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has provided financial
assistance to, and guarantee for, an affiliated company in the
amount of HK$150 million, which represented approximately
6% of the Group’s total assets value as at 31 December 2014.

Management Contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the
year attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 28%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 72%
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Sales

During the year, the Group had two customers only and the
percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the major
customers are as follows:

51%
49%

The largest customer
The remaining customer

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s customers noted above.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 33.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code. A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also
been adopted in this regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.
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Review of the Annual Report by Audit

Committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive
Director with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and reports to the Board.
The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the AGM.

Update on Directors’ Information
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the
information of the directors of the Company since the date of
the 2014 Interim Report is set out below:

Mr. HUNG Leung
(Alternate Director to Mr. WANG Sing)

Mr. HUNG resigned as a non-executive director of China NT
Pharma Group Company Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1011), with
effect from 18 September 2014.

On behalf of the Board
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
OEIl Kang, Eric

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 AR E

_i
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RENEWABLE ENERGY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
62 to 138, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Al : +852 2289 8888 + HIL : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EEBAREK

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_T-—WNF+—A=+—HBILFE

2014 2013
—Z-F —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
B = FHET FAT
Revenue &= 5 97,334 113,744
Cost of sales SHE BA 6 (73,331) (71,527)
Gross profit EF 24,003 42,217
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (E18), Wzs E5E 7 (1,029) 3,583
Administrative expenses 1THE A 6 (21,462) (29,386)
Operating profit R EF 1,512 16,414
Finance income B TS WA 8 5,319 3,351
Finance costs A& R A 8 (37,070) (46,755)
Finance costs — net BMERAN — F8 8 (31,751) (43,404)
Fair value gain on derivative liability — $74 T AB&E 2 AFEW 46 2,150
Share of profits less losses of JEAE B & A )
associated companies Y AR ES 18 19 45,076 58,830
Profit before income tax PS8t Al R 14,883 33,990
Income tax expense FriSfi sz 11 (1,922) (6,382)
Profit for the year REERR 12,961 27,608
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H#th2mE (F18), WA :
Items that may be reclassified ARERENSER
subsequently to profit or loss Bm2EHE
Currency translation differences bE N M B = 2R (41,238) 45,748
Release of exchange reserve upon & —FE S A RRED
disposal of an associated company bE A (4,236) =
Release of exchange reserve upon HE B R IEEE
disposal of discontinued EBRED
operations [E 5. - (2,668)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ZXFEEHEMEME (FiE), WA -
for the year, net of tax megpdfe (45,474) 43,080
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEE2MH
for the year (B8 WABE (32,513) 70,688
Profit attributable to: AR 4G FI
Equity holders of the Company RAElE=FEA 14,462 28,194
Non-controlling interests FEFRRRAE S (1,501) (586)
12,961 27,608
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 Decemb

er 2014

HE-T-—ME+=A=+—BILFE

FmEREBARR

2014 2013
—EF-mF —F-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 THET BT
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LA TFEALZE
attributable to: (F58), WA#HE :
Equity holders of the Company AARERFEA (30,816) 71,028
Non-controlling interests FEPE R A 2 (1,697) (340)
(32,513) 70,688
Dividends RE 14 - =
Earnings per share attributable AARERFEEA
to equity holders of the Company  E4EEREF
(expressed in HK cents per share) (A ERAEWLITR)
Basic earnings per share BREXRER 13(a) 0.61 1.20
Diluted earnings per share BREBEER 13(b) 0.53 1.06

PEBLRRREGRAR |
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HmEEERRER

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—NE+=—A=+—8

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FHET
ASSETS &=
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - HES R 15 1,177,283 900,845
Construction in progress fEETRR 16 500 251,884
Prepaid land lease payments TERT T A E FKIE 17 15,934 13,147
Intangible assets EmREE 18 5,448 6,053
Prepayments and other receivables 81 5k I8 f £ i & U =% 21 23,637 57,132
Interests in associated companies REtE R R 2w 19 965,691 1,095,487
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 2,188,493 2,324,548
Current assets MENEE
Inventory EAS 6,157 6,571
Trade and other receivables LA BR R e L i Uk 21 103,944 99,628
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEED 22 278,271 271,050
Total current assets RBEERE _.....388,372 377,249
Total assets EE#E 2,576,865 2,701,797
EQUITY fEm
Capital and reserves attributable to 72 FERIZFE A
equity holders of the Company ERAR F#E
Share capital i &N 23 26,564 26,564
Reserves i 24 1,730,951 1,761,767
Equity attributable to equity holders A& F#ERFE A
of the Company EihRER 1,757,515 1,788,331
Non-controlling interests RS 1,345 3,042
Total equity S 1,758,860 1,791,373
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #LEe¥ESEBXR

As at 31 December 2014
R-T—ME+-_A=+—H

2014 2013
—2-@mF —E=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FET T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings SRITIE R 25 589,892 562,236
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSTAE 27 34,078 39,940
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEHARE 623,970 602,176
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables JE AT R R R L A A5 R 29 104,124 133,998
Derivative liability PHETEARE 28 - 36
Current portion of bank borrowings RITIE FRBNEREE 25 89,911 72,258
Convertible note CIE &5 26 - 101,956
Total current liabilities naeEes 194,035 308,248
Total liabilities =Rt 818,005 910,424
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEEE 2,576,865 2,701,797
Net current assets REEEZEE 194,337 69,001
Total assets less current liabilities EELAERRBERE 2,382,830 2,393,549
OEl Kang, Eric LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
= RER
Director Director
EE EFE
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BALANCE SHEET
BERER

As at 31 December 2014
RZZE—NE+=—A=+—8

2014 2013
—E-mF —F=f
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN ENGIPA: 323 20 12,261 12,283
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H e UGR 21 498 281
Amounts due from subsidiaries A CNEPNEI B 20 1,385,491 1,513,296
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 22 79,248 25,407
Total current assets naEE#S#®E 000 1,465,237 1,538,984
Total assets EEAE 1,477,498 1,551,267
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to ZRQAFERIFEA
equity holders of the Company FEAL BR AN R 15 45
Share capital N 23 26,564 26,564
Reserves ] 24 1,242,954 1,258,454
Total equity fESBE 1,269,518 1,285,018
LIABILITIES =
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries RSB B A Rl Fk I8 20 206,552 162,330
Derivative liability MEITHEARE 28 - 36
Other payables H fth FE T X 29 1,428 1,927
Convertible note AR R R 26 - 101,956
Total current liabilities REAEHEE _.....207,980 266,249
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEEE 1,477,498 1,551,267
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,257,257 1,272,735
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAERS 1,269,518 1,285,018
OEl Kang, Eric LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
=8 RER
Director Director
EF EF

66 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited | Annual Report 2014



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-T-NF+-A=+—BHLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADREEREARE
Employee
share-based Non-
Share Share  Exchange compensation Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
EERH
A& RHEE EXGfE HERE At REEA a8 FERER R&AE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
i Tk i T T T T i T
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-ZF-R-B2kH 26,564 993,505 131,439 3,112 - 562511 1,717,131 3382 1720513
Profit for the year REERR - - - - - 28,194 28,194 (586) 27,608
Other comprehensive income: ~ E#2EMNA :
Currency translation differences ~ EX#EZE - - 45,502 - - - 45,502 24p 45,748
Release of exchange reserve HEBK|HEE
upon disposal of discontinued ~ EREREH
operations 3 - - (2,668) - - - (2,668) - (2,668)
Total comprehensive income dEMAEE = - b4 = - %194 7108 (340) 70688
Transactions with owners HEBARGZRE
Employee share option benefits & B ER=7 - - - 172 - - 172 - 172
Lapse of employee share option B EMRfE
benefits BHER = - - (1,839) - 1,339 = = =
Balance at 31 December 2013~ W=E-=F+-F=1-H
&8 26,564 993,505 174,273 1,945 - 592,044 1,788,331 3,042 1,791,373
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-F-Hz&H% 26,564 993,505 174,273 1,945 - 592,044 1,788,331 3,02 1,791,373
Profit for the year REERR - - - - - 14,462 14,462 (1,501) 12,961
Other comprehensive loss: A2 EEE
Currency tranglation differences B HEZE - - (@1,042) - - - (@1,042) (196) (#1,238)
Release of exchange reserve HE-RBE N TR
upon disposal of an agsociated ~ EHER
company e - - (4,236) - - - (4,236) - (4,236)
Total comprehensive income  2EAALE 0 - - sy - - 4462 (30816) (1697 (32513)
Transactions with owners HERAETZRA
Lapse of employee share option ~ [EEER#E
benefits IR - - - (1.428) - 1428 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 ~ W=F-BE+=A=1-8
A3 26,564 993,505 128,995 517 - 607,934 1,757,515 1,345 1,758,860

REBLE

HERRERRAF | =%

TUEE IR
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_T-—WNF+—A=+—HBILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —F=f
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FE T FAET
Cash flows from operating activities E&XKCHERE
Cash generated from operations 4R FrE3H & 32 73,421 117,841
Mainland China taxation paid BT EARER A (7,218) (8,762)
Net cash generated from operating S ETEFTS
activities REFE 66,203 109,079
Cash flows from investing activities BREFHZHRESHE
Interest received B IF 2 4,999 3,258
Addition to prepayments NB TR ZIE (2,247) (56,527)
Purchase of property, plant and BAME -
equipment e es K 54 (20) (319)
Purchase of construction in progress B ATERE T2 (120,443) (77,971)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE - HER MR
plant and equipment FTi8 58 389 2
Proceeds from disposal of & — R E QA
an associated company FTiS 508 78,716 -
Decrease in restricted cash ZRHREHL - 1,014
Dividends received from associated B U B
companies AR E 72,190 85,527
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEERES,(FTH)
from investing activities BEFE 33,514 (45,016)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZFEZHERE
Repayment of bank and other loans EEBITREMER (71,278) (72,897)
Repayment of convertible note BEABRERE (93,075) =
Proceeds from bank loan RITERATS A 130,677 66,663
Interest paid BAFLE (54,642) (42,248)
Net cash used in financing activites @& &&HFAARSFE (88,318) (48,482)
Net increase in cash and RERBEESZEEY
cash equivalents B hNEEE 11,399 15,581
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZzRER
1 January HEEEY 271,050 250,594
Effect of foreign exchange rate e == 2
changes -7 (4,178) 4,875
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-A=+—-RZRER
31 December REeEEEY 278,271 271,050
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General information

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the
“Company” or “CRE”) is an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability.
The address of the registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in alternative energy
business. The Group has operations mainly in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”). On 29 January 2015, the ultimate holding
company was changed from HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC”), a company incorporated in Bermuda and listed
in Hong Kong, to Claudio Holdings Limited, an unlisted
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. HKC
has become an intermediate holding company since 29
January 2015.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ thousand
or HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements were approved by the board of
directors for issue on 30 March 2015.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of a derivative liability,
which is carried at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable requirements of the predecessor
companies ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial
year and the comparative period.

—E-—NEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B R R AR M

—R&EH
PREBERRKEAGRAR ([ARQA]
(PEBELRER]) ARFEEHSEMAZ
WEREBRAG - HEM#EEti
£Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1— 1111,
Cayman lIslands °

ARBREMBAR (G [ AEE]) T8
MEBRERER - ARBZEHETEMN
I ARLME ([FHE]) -

RARRMNERBBERZAAR DT ([H
QA ERET e RZTE—RFE—HF=+Ah
H @ SEERAFHENAREFMA IR
BEEEmzBEBRR (ER) BRAR ([F
BER]) #FARRBRELES MK L2
3k A F]Claudio Holdings Limited ° &
BERE-_ZE-—AF—AZTNLBEXA—
E/EBZER AR o

BRBEEAN  WERATBREUT AT
([FHxl) BBEMEF - WELKAPHRE
ER-E—RE=A=tREE=eHET

% -

FTESHBERBE

RAGAMERRARAZ EZ A BRE
FIEAT « BRZBHAIN - WERKDKAA
ERFEANEREA -

2.1 REEE
FEEAELBRAERAD A
BREDRBEEEREREER ([F
BHBREER]) FE - BAHS
WEIXELRAEBHRE - LR ELE
BRAFEAEZTETAGEELE
Jo AMBREEAREBRBEZEA
B HE IR EE A FED ($328)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 TFEEHBEREIE @)

policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (&)

70

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) Amended standards adopted by the Group

HKAS 32 Financial instruments:
(Amendment) Presentation — offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKAS 36 Impairment of assets
(Amendment) — recoverable amount
disclosure

The adoption of the above amendments has
no significant effects on the Group’s financial
information.

(b) Amended standards and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2014 but not
currently relevant to the Group (although
they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events)

HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
(Amendment) Recognition and
measurement — novation
of derivatives

HKFRS 10, 12 and Consolidation for

HKAS 27 (2011) investment entities
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) Int 21 Levies

REMEBEUBREEN 2T R
R ARBAETERGEG; &
BETACEBAEESHABERZB
TR R HE o 8 RS E H R
WHZEE IBRRRMGEFEESY
BHRERBEATE 2 BB N E4R

= o

SN BRREBRKE
(a) AEBERMNZEIEFTLER

EEE R SRIA 25
$325%% —HHER
CHEN) BEATR

afE

EEErt R BERE
365 — BEAKE
CHEN) SENWE

SRR R R SA  E2 B R
BRI EEATE -

(b) AR_F-—MFE—-—HA—BRAKZ
FIREFEREEREHRA - R
HEAREERE KB ER R
B(BEAREARRRZ RER

BETRIETEERTE

BB GRER SRIE:
£395% R RE
(BFTA) —fTETER

HE R

BEPGREEL REBBNEH
$£105% - H12%%
BB
E275%

(Z%—%)
CCHES)

EF (BRHE  #E
RERBZEE)
— REFE21R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEFBRHE @)

policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (&)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BBREBREE (F)

(continued) )

(c) New standards, amendments and (c) Eﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@:?-@%-ﬁ-/ﬁ
interpretations have been issued but are FRAG AR R W AR AE 2K+ B I
not effective for the financial year beginning RFRN TR~ EFTA K
on 1 January 2014 and have not been early i
adopted
The following standards, amendments to THIER] - —’%/E'JZf J$&uﬁ$
standards and interpretation have been LEFE  BARAEE=
published and are mandatory for the Group’s AFE—A— E&Zfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁzgﬁ
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 HR ] SR X 14 A 52 Bl R AR - HEAS
January 2015 or later periods, but the Group S B IR R R

has not early adopted them:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT AR 2%

Rz e EEN

HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Defined benefit plans: employee contributions 1 July 2014
BEEERE193% (22 ——F) (BTA) RERiEE : ERHK —ZT-MELA-H
Annual improvements project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle 1 July 2014
FEICEER HEBHBRSEN T TFE T —FEMNFELE —ZT-MFELA-H
Annual improvements project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle 1 July 2014
FEIERR HEANBRERN-_B——FZ -2 —FRMNFRIE —ZT-MELA-H
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BEGHERER (BTX) ity T R"¥-A-H
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: applying the consolidation exception 1 January 2016

HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BEMBREENE10%  DEVBREE REER © RAREANIIME) T ¥-A-H

BIE12% RE B GEERF285 (B3]A)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment) Sale or contribution of assets between and investor and
its associate or joint venture
EANBREEANZ10RREAGHEN REZAHBEIRELR BNEENENIE
F285% (E3174)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for acqwsmons of interests in joint operation

BERMBREENE 1R (BITA) KRS EEBRRNETRE

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts

BRI REEE145% EEETRE

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment)  Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation

ARG EAF16% RER G ER EEMERBENAER 7L
385 (BT4)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendment)  Agriculture: bearer plants

BEREEAZ16 REBEHES BE  £ENED

FA15E (BFIR)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements
RS EAE2TH (B3]F) BB B A
Annual improvements project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle
FEIGEER HEBMBREEN S —62 _T-NERANFEYE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
BEMBRELENE15R EF &AM
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
BANBREENEIR MBIA

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH

1 January 2016
- 5-f-H

1 January 2016
“Z-xF-A-A

1 January 2016
—Z-rF-A—H

1 January 2016
—2-—5—-A-H

1 January 2016
—Z-xF-A—H

1 January 2016
T 5-A-H
1 January 2016
- 5-A-H
1 January 2017
—T—+t5-f—H
1 January 2018
—Z-\5-A-H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(c)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2014 and have not been early
adopted (continued)

The Group has not early adopted the new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation, which have been issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2014. The Group has commenced
an assessment of the related impact, but
is not yet in a position to state whether any
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the financial
information will be resulted.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation as from the Company’s first
financial year commencing on or after 3 March
2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact
of the changes in the Companies Ordinance
on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and only the
presentation and the disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements will be
affected.

e M B RRME

2 FTESTTHEREBE @

2.1

IRBLELYE (48)
EHBESHREE (&)

(c)

ERMER _-_T—MNFE—HA—H
R ERFEHARER - BIA &
TR R < #AT LR - BRI AR R
= (F)

A B B F IR EMAER
—E-NFE-H-HARRZHK
FERAERZHERD - HE
Az BRI e - AEBEEET
FHEAERERE - MEIR B B R BE
EHenYAEE et BRRERM
BEREIN T ANEREMERE
F o

BB ABRD (F622F)

Uk oh - BB A AR B (622
B) FORM[RA REA] ORE
R Z IR B 5358150 = F — 1Y
FZAZHKZENARRERE
MRFERERARERE - NKBE I
RAEGOIZ BN ERERHEL
N A& (£622F ) 950 M
HiGZaMBHRRNARTEET
Ah c ESAKEZEwmATK
AREREAFERESTHER
AU BHMREMNZS RBEET
2 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEFBRHE @)
policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

2.2 REEE
(a) MEAT

PEBLRRREGRAR |

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.

—E-—NEER

B8 A A S 7N S ] S EL AT 42
iz R (BREEER
AEBER2ERXER I EXBER
RBRESAEOR - KA
HHERITEEENIMEERD
W RIAREEZESHZER - g
BRRZEHEESRIAREEL
BHEIFGBE 6 YR AEBAE
2 BRFRIERHF -

AEBRBUBEHERERS
HEFIBR - WEBHTE A B 2 EaER
ERMEREE - BB Al
BEANEEZBERANEEET
ARz RF{E - PAEERE
BREIARERIMEL 2 EMA
BEXABZAYE - WHEHE
RAREER S - REHAH
By P U B AT A8 B B EE I PRI B
BERFIAABEVNTRREERR
FEFE

ZRER BIR (B Bl Y B B2 - TR
KA B T MR SRR I MM AR -
IR TR RS SRR
WA D U TREA—
BIRRESRLL HIEIE TR FE
E - ATRAFESRBR R E
R BB T A BRFEE
HRER TR PIMAtE o R
FERE a5 BV FT B EL A A AR BB D R
BHHNATEFE  BRIEER
B R & ERIR E M AA R A
BERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

2 FTESTTHEREBE @

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 2.2 mEERE (&)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued) (a) MIBAT (&)

74

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. It is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

PREERA(E - NIRRT JHIE
MR 2 SRR A MRt MR T AR
ERkAEm 2 WERHAF
B BEAKERB5RIEEFE
ZRFE - FARIEEE -
BEEERE  LRAKREHE
REBEREZAFESE  AIE
BEENBRRATRESR

ERRBZEBERBR  RHE
RAZTERRANRRET
R KABHRREEREERE
FRAS » 3RS DA BR B A
EBETMEEZREZED - (18
RElZ EEBAARRRIRE W E
WA SRR -

SEARRIMZRS - BEHRE
BARZEETR 2 RER W
AT HI3H - poh - REIREE
e EEE - IMB AR 2 5K
EfEH B EEE - NHEREARSE
BRAZEABE K -

fisd B BB A R ER 2 iR BB E
IEA B B A% MY B A Rl 2 2T R
AR - SN E R B T R 2 4R
BRAEEBH &S M B HRRAR
BIRERRZEERE (BB
) 2IREE - BIASZENS
REZREETRENR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(b) Changes in ownership interests in

(c)

PEBLRRREGRAR |

subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 FTESTTHEREBE @

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 2.2 REEE (&)

76

but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s interests
in associated companies include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associated
company, any difference between the cost
of the associated company and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associated
company’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associated
company is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associated
companies’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the profit or loss, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associated company equals or exceeds
its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.

(d) Associated companies (d) BE&ERF
Associated companies are all entities over ﬁ%%’&jﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d) Associated companies (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in the associated company
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share
of profits less losses of associated companies”
in the income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in interests in
associated companies are recognised in the
profit or loss.

2.3 Segment reporting

REBLE

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors of
the Company who make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is Renminbi and the
Group’s presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollars to facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation
(continued)

(c)

(d)

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Group companies (continued)

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Cumulative
exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associated
company that includes a foreign operation), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 TFEEHBEREIE @)

policies (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 Y% - HERRE

80

Property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvement, plant and machinery, motor
vehicles and furniture, fixtures and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method, to write
off their cost less the residual values over their
estimated useful lives or remaining useful lives for
those second-hand assets and the estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Shorter of the
remaining
operation period or
20 years

Electricity utility plants

Other plant and machinery 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease
period or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other gains/losses, net in
the profit or loss.

Construction in progress

All costs directly attributable to the construction of
property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified
as construction in progress. On completion, the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until such items as the
relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent
prepayments for leasehold land held under
operating leases, which are stated at cost and
subsequently are amortised in the profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(@) Concession right
Concession right acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The concession right has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method over its concession right period of
shorter of the remaining operation period or 20
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Computer software
Computer software separately acquired is
shown at historical cost. Computer software
acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of computer
software over its estimated useful live of 2-5
years.

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associated companies

and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivable. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.
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2 FTESTHTHEREHEBE @

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 ERMEE (&)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” category are presented in the profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counter party.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial guarantee policy

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf
of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s and the Company’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at
the higher of the initial amount, less amortisation of
fees recognised in accordance with HKAS 18, and
the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by
management’s judgement. The fee income earned
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of
the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating
to guarantees is reported in the profit or loss within
other operating expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at
each balance sheet date. The change in the fair
value is recognised in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The amount of the
provision is recognised in the profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against other gains/losses, net in the profit or
loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to other gains/losses, net in
the profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Convertible preference share
Convertible preference shares are classified as
equity that can be converted to share capital at
the option of the holder. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds. Convertible preference shares are
recognised initially at the fair value.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associated
companies operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 FTESTHTHEREHEBE @

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax 219 ERIEIEFTBH (@)

(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associated companies, except for deferred
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or difference taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 TFEEHBEREIE @)

policies (continued)

2.20 Compound financial instruments 220 EEe®MIA

88

Compound financial instruments issued by the
Group comprise convertible notes that can be
converted to share capital at the option of the
holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at the fair value
of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the
fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument
is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition except on
CONVErsion or expiry.

When the note is converted, the relevant equity
component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred
to share capital and share premium for shares
issued. When the note is redeemed, the relevant
equity portion is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.21

2.22

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs
are expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leaves entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in a mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the PRC for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions
to the MPF comply with the related statutory
requirements. The Group has no further
payments obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave MPF prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available. The asset of MPF is
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a
percentage in compliance with the
requirements of respective municipal
governments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

REBLE

(c)

(d)

ERREARAA | =F—

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan in which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the
Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions
which are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest
and including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save). At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting performance
and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the profit or loss, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (continued)
The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. In respect of the potential obligations to
dismantle the wind farms at the end of their useful
lives, the Group would assess the obligations
continuously based on the latest changes in the
laws and regulations and make provision when the
recognition criteria are met.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
provision of services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of business
tax within the Group and after eliminating sales
within the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

2 FTESTHTHEREHEBE @

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued) 225 W TR (&)

PEBLRRREGRAR |

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to
the sale have been resolved. The Group bases
its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
(i) Revenue from alternative energy is recognised
based on power dispatch during commercial
operation. Commercial operation starts when
obtaining a Power Purchase Agreement,
safety certificate from the State Electricity
Regulatory Commission (“SERC”) or Provincial
Grid Authority, and 240 hours commissioning.
Revenue attributable to the sales of electricity
generated during construction and testing
period is not included in the electricity sales
revenue, but is offset against the cost of
property, plant and equipment.

Revenue from Clean Development Mechanism
(“CDM”) is recognised when the counter
party has committed to purchase the carbon
credits, the sales prices have been agreed,
relevant electricity has been generated and
transmitted, and it is probable that the carbon
credits will be entitled.

(iii) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

Operating leases as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

B3 R b B
3.1 B EMEE

3 Financial risk management 3
3.1 Financial risk factors

PEBLRRREGRAR |

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, bank borrowings and convertible
note. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

The Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(@) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial
transaction and monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors the foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2014, if US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against Renminbi
respectively, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax would
have been HK$1,866,000 higher/lower
respectively (2013: HK$2,360,000 higher/
lower).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises
from bank borrowings. Borrowings issued
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk due to fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group’s results and operating cash flows are
dependent on changes in market interest
rates.

The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposures
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2014, if interest rates had
been 100 (2013: 100) basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax would have
decreased/increased by HK$4,839,000 (2013:
HK$6,049,000) after interest capitalised.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its cash
and cash equivalents, prepayments and trade
and other receivables, and financial guarantee
provided for credit facilities granted to certain
associated companies.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with
and cash and cash equivalents, most of the
deposits are placed with certain state-owned
banks in the PRC which are high-credit-quality
financial institutions and banks with high credit
rankings in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Credit risk (continued)

To manage the credit risk associated with trade
and other receivables, the Group adopts risk
control measures to assess the credit quality,
to determine credit limits and approve credit of
customers, taking into account their financial
position and past experience. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group is exposed to significant
concentration of credit risk in terms of
electricity sales as the Group’s sales of
electricity were made to state-owned provincial
power grid companies. The Group normally
does not require collateral from trade debtors.
It normally grants credit terms of 30 days
to these power grid companies. However,
part of the trade receivables due from the
power grid companies relate to government
subsidy which are subject to the government
allocation of the tariff surcharge for renewable
energy. Based on past experience and
industry practice, these tariff premiums are
generally paid in 6 to 12 months from the date
of the sales recognition. Ageing analysis of
the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed
in Note 21. Management makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment of the recoverability of trade and
other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

—E-—NEER

3

R IR

BERRER &)
3.1 IR EZE (&)

(c)

FERE (&)

B TR U R R N H A EUGR 2
HEGEERR - AEBEDRAR
REIRIEE  KREBEFPZWK
MR BELRR - FHEREZ
FEER EBEEEERERMELE
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IAREREREUR £ 1T 8 W B 8 HA &
% o

AEERENHEENTEAHES
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AF] c ARE—RTE B
REREE G - NEE— K
FEH AR A H30R 215
B8 - R BOBRKRERAA
ZEWR R R BB R - %
RRBAREELREENMNE
2ol - REBBELRRITH
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HEFAETZEARXENM - &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MEEBERE @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 iR RAZE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RBELEKE

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is
unable to meet its current obligations when
they fall due. The Group measures and
monitors its liquidity through the maintenance
of prudent ratios regarding the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans
and commitments of the Group. The Group
also maintains a conservative level of liquid
assets to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and

REBE TR SR EERERE
HEBIRARETETZEAR
rEESEBEFRDESRE
(BREBREEE B BEXX
AAE) 2BRELE  HERER
HRBESER - #H - AKHE
TR B E ERREARF - A
BRAERMRSRE - BRAE
B R RS BIZT EAREETRR
KEANREHE -

material cash requirements in the course of
ordinary business.

FA - AREEEREBRINE
fEEARIMER -

During the year, the Group complied with all
externally imposed loan covenant requirements
to which it is subject.

TRFAVNAEE R AR REE
HERABZAKNIHAE - TX
S2ESRABIABRATRE
ERAKEBEEEBMAZFAZER
BEmmE - BRIRTTRERIN - B
REEBRFZETK - R+ @A
MBI RSN EREE ©

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date. The table
has been drawn up with reference to the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
is required to pay. Except for bank borrowings,
balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting
is not significant.

Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —-Z-f —ZEf EENE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T THT THT THT THT
Group X&E
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-ME+=R
==
Bank borrowings RITHER 130,655 125,019 343,664 257,572 856,910
Trade and other payables EARZREMEMNZ 104,124 - - - 104,124
Financial guarantee B TR 150,060 - - - 150,060
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=F+_A
=+—H
Bank borrowings RITHER 112,561 114,961 313,320 275,068 815,910
Trade and other payables FERERT R EfEMFR  133,998 - - - 133,998
Convertible note AR & 101,956 = = - 101,956
Financial guarantee IHER 164,978 = = = 164,978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

BERRER &)
3.1 IR EZE (&)

(d) RBESERE (&)

Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR et —ZEE EFENE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Company N
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MFE+=A
==
Amounts due to subsidiaries R HBAFHE 206,552 - - - 206,552
Other payables HA R 1,428 - - - 1,428
Financial guarantee ISR 195,860 - - - 195,860
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%1+=R
=+—H
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEffHTEB A 7Z0AE 162,330 - - - 162,330
Other payables Hib M3 1,927 - - - 1,927
Convertible note AHRRER 101,956 - - - 101,956
Financial guarantee ISR 74,176 = = = 74,176

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital by reviewing the
capital structure. The capital structure of the
Group consists of debt and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group considers
the cost and the risk associated with the capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or conduct shares
buy-back.

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH

3.2 EXERER

AEEERERAZRERREAEE
SEEEEB 288 BRBKER
HEBRBEMRRERTE ATR
ME - WA RERE AR RBIEM R
EEERA -

REBBEERTERNRBEZRER -
MG ABEABRKRAT  AKEZ
BARBERERHERARRESFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MEEBERE @)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 EXEBEE (&)
The Group maintains its gearing ratio within the REBRBEEAERR  §AEEELRE
reasonable range according to the Group’s strategy. B RERFNEBRHBENR -
The gearing ratios as 31 December 2014 and 2013 RZE-—NERZZET-—=F+"A=
were as follows: T—HZEBEAREBLERMNT :
Group
EH
2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current borrowings mENER 89,911 174,214
Non-current borrowings ERENEK 589,892 562,236
Total borrowings ER4a5E 679,803 736,450
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : RE KR EEEY (278,271) (271,050)
Net debt position B FRERR 401,532 465,400
Total equity b e k] 1,758,860 1,791,373
Gearing ratio BEARA B E 22.8% 26.0%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AEEME
The table below analyses financial instruments TEREBHEZSZEAFEIEREZS
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The BMITEETHIT - NERBIFEAT

different levels have been defined as follows:

-  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets — FEEEXEBERNEEMSZ®
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). B CREFARE) (E—H) -

- Inputs other than quoted prices included — BE—HRFAWMENAIINZHAH
within level 1 that are observable for the asset % BEBGECEE (AER)
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or ki (BREB B1%) BEME
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level IR (B=H) -

2),

—  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — WIERMSEZMEEERCE
based on observable market data (that is, EXEEHAZSIE (BEREH
unobservable inputs) (level 3). AEUR) (B=8) -

The Group has no assets and liabilities that are RZE-—NE+=-A=+—HAKH

measured at fair value at 31 December 2014, WEREATEAEZEERBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HBERERE @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 X¥EME (&)
The following table presents the Group's assets TREIWRZZE—=F+=_A=+—
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 AAEEEAFEFECEERAE -

December 2013.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
=8  E-® =8 a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FET FET
Derivative liability PTETEBRE - 36 _ 36
The fair value of financial instruments that are ﬁgg%fﬁﬁ%ﬁf’%;@f%ziﬁﬁ%lﬂzﬁ
not in an active market is determined by using $T§M1Eﬁ&ﬁqﬁ+ﬁj iéf1m§&ff@
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques ?1ﬂ2§ﬁ5§{§2ﬂ%ﬁ%ziﬁ§y?§v
maximise the use of observable market data where femBERDIKBAR ZHH G
o 2EDiE N\ SE =
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity ® E&Af%ﬂ*iglﬂgﬁﬁﬁé
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required K%&ﬁi\i’:}jjﬁﬁgﬁ%@ﬁxﬁ CBIZIETA
to fair value an instrument are observable, the SR RE M -
instrument is included in level 2.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial f@ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ@lﬂ%@zgiﬁﬁ&
instruments include: flieE
~  The fair value of the derivative liability is - RACFUAERTETAR
determined using the Binomial model. B2 AFE °
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, Iﬁ@ﬁﬁ@%{%%t‘h%%@ﬁﬁ&im
trade and other receivables and trade and other ﬁg%ﬂu&ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ@@ﬁﬂ%
payables approximate their fair values due to their FEERAEQVERE  DERNAER
short maturities. HARIHA 2 B AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

4 Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment, intangible
assets, prepaid land lease payments
and interests in associated

companies

The Group tests whether property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associated companies
engaged in the alternative energy businesses
(“Alternative Energy Projects”) have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2.9. The Group reviews
certain indicators of potential impairment such as
actual electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity,
market unit price of Certified Emission Reduction
(“CER”) and other general market conditions.

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need
for recognising an impairment loss is assessed by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets, to
the higher of (i) the fair value less cost to sell, and
(ii) the value-in-use on a project-by-project basis.
The fair value is either determined by referring
to recent transactions or by independent valuers
whenever appropriate. The value-in-use of the
assets represents estimated future cash flows from
the continuous use of the assets, and requires
complex assumptions and estimates such as future
electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity and CER
and discount rates. The discount rates used to
discount the estimated future cash flows are based
on the relevant industry sector risk premium and the
gearing ratio.

4 EREFHEERFE

AEEFERBAALRREMAR (B
EERBATAEBRZRKEN) FHEE
TR Z B8 R I -

AEBEHEERRZGEERBR - BRE
& ME2 S EERIERBERSERA
Rl > TXHIIRE LG T — @M BEFE
ZEERABERAEFLHERAERZEER

&R -

(a) W% - HBERRE - BEE
E-BANLHAER IE}SZEA
Bt N E 2 s 2 EHRE

EAEMRBERESH BRI EEK
CfREER AEEESZRME
COMMBERTBERARAYE  HER
R BVEE BANTHEEFR
Rt 2B RERER ([BRERR
B 2BMERRZ SRS HBER
AR o $EIA%E§$ BB HE
Zopm: ERGEE B &
BEE (F%Z ﬁ%ﬁﬁng) Z TG EAE
TRIA R B At — AR T35 AR ©

HWERESR  EEBELBREER
{8 8() A FERE B - Rk
REE (AKSERE)  KREEER
AR EH LR RER 2B ERSE -
AFEDNZRROAXFEETRHBYL
HEMETE (RERBRAME) - BE
EREEEFBECREEEE 2 M
ARBRERE  AEEEAUIEHE
MEREG  BRERAKBEE  E
E BRRRAHERMRES - AR
BT ARREREZBEERTIER
HEATERRGEERERNBAELXE

.
TE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

4 BERGTHERHAE &

4 Critical accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)
(a) Estimated impairment of property,

(a) M= MERFRE  BEE

plant and equipment, intangible
assets, prepaid land lease payments
and interests in associated

companies (continued)

During the year, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Alternative Energy
Projects. The value-in-use calculation was based on
the key assumptions, including (i) average annual
tariff increment at approximately 3% (2013: 3%)
based on management’'s expectation on market
development and general inflation, (ii) projection
of volume of electricity dispatched based on
the operational feasibility reports and historical
performances, and (iii) assuming the contributions
from CER is of negligible amount. The pre-tax
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are between 11.29% and 13.65% (2013: 11.06%
and 13.37%) per annum.

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of subsidiaries operating wind
farms and interests in associated companies are
higher than their respective carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there is an
average annual tariff increment at 1.5% throughout
the operating period, the profit before taxation
would have been decreased by HK$56,430,000
(2013: HK$74,685,000). Similarly, with all other
variables held constant, if the volume of electricity
dispatched is 10% less than management
expectation, the profit before taxation would
have been decreased by HK$150,010,000 (2013:
HK$177,269,000).

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH

B AT HEAERERR
Bt N 2 s 2 e E
(&)

FA-AEEERBERERELEED
WA - FREBEFEEREIEA
FTEBREMEL  B8F : () ERER
EBHEmsERMEEBRBIR AR F
HEFHNE3% (ZT—=F :3%) Z
BEEE ()VRBEEENTERS R
BARBREEMGTZ2HES 0 K(ii)
BEREZERFEZERTZ - @
ARESRERA AR EAEST
%11.29%%13.65% (— & — = F :
11.06%%213.37%) °

RIE R ER G - B QR RS
AREENRES LESE 2T RE S
HERELZENEEES -

EMEHEMESERTEZBERT
MR EEFHANSFEFLHEELM
1.5% + i A& 71 f& )&k 456,430,000/
T (ZZF— =4 : 74,685,000/ 7T) °
Et  ERAEHEMERERTE 2
BRAT MGaEEREEEBEHD
10% * Bt Al & £ f& 8 4> 150,010,000
T (ZZT—=%:177,269,000/7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

104

(b)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives and residual value of
property, plant and equipment

Management of the Company and its subsidiaries
determine the estimated useful lives, residual value
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
projected wear and tear incurred during power
generation. This could change significantly as a
result of technical renovations on power generators.
Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on
existing knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial year that are different from current
assumptions could require material adjustments
to the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for potential tax exposures based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Allowances for bad and doubtful
debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables
and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer.

e M B RRME

4 BEREFHERHAE &)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Y% BBERREZTER

FHRRRER

ARRREMNBARZEREEEEY
X HEEbkRBoEAUERFS
RIREERABTES L o AT
ERBEHRRMELE 2FHRERME
Hoe thATRE R R B B 2 KM EHM
BEEREH  FAERAFHERSL
HEtETR - AIERERSAEMGEA
ERFH - BREMA - FT— @M
BEREZERBHIRRERR - A1F
BREAEFTFEENE  BIBERREZ
REEFHEANFHE -

Fr&%i
AEBAREERFEBMMAEN
EEEMSHBER - AELEXH
B o REEXBBET  AFER5
N B2 HERIBREERETE - KN
SEREATHEIHEI B 2 EH5HT
PAIRE AR HIBHERAR - B
FERZRERARRYCERZ SR
TR FHERSFEEERKTA
HR A 2 FTS T MR AT TR B -

RIRARB R

REE 2 REERBEBBRRTIRIE R
R Z T A2 K B R 0 AT AT A A K
EIEEZHEEE - RN AZEFRIK
R BEEBRENE - AEHAE X
b BREESREPZEERBENRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition for CDM income
CDM income is determined by the electricity volume
generated, emission reduction factors and unit
price of CER. The volumes of electricity transmitted
to the grid companies are subject to the verification
and certification by an agent appointed by the
buyer. The final settlement of CDM income will
only occur after verification and certification by
an agent. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in estimating the expected volumes of CER
certification and the probability that future economic

benefits will flow to the entity.

5 Revenue

The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised during the year is as follows:

4 BERGTHERHAE &

(e)

RRBRREHWA 2z S

R

BRERBHBATDIRBELNES -

/JEHJFI%&TZ
FEeoMEFAQAHHHHNEES -
E%é&ﬁ’ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ&&%

ERHEE BB E
AR
°© /IEJ /%%

R 1) AT 1 0 12 P e B e A AR

RIERKEE - RIGFTIEHZE
E_El’ﬁ? g8 N R R E R 21

& RBE

H—r VM F—J 1=}

BHAREIE - BAEHERHE

5 W&

AEFERNZIBEWARBOSEMT :

2014 2013

—E-mF —F-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FAT

Sales of electricity BHHEE 97,334 113,744

Sales of electricity were all generated by the wind power
plants of the Group. The Group has a single reportable
segment which is wind power segment. As the Group
does not have material operations outside the PRC, no

geographic segment information is presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
revenue for reportable segments from external customers
of HK$97,334,000 (2013: HK$113,744,000) is only

attributable to the China market.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
two customers with revenue exceeding 10% of the
Revenues
from the customers amounting to HK$49,553,000
and HK$47,781,000 (2013: HK$58,974,000 and
HK$54,770,000) respectively are solely attributable to

Group’s total revenue (2013: two customers).

alternative energy business.

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH

ENHE—REXEAKENANEEY - KN
SEEE—ETEHSHM MENEES

e AAKRBEETBERINIBEEKNLE
BRZJIMEDRER

i

HE_ZT-NE+_-_A=+—HBI#&F
B AEBREINRBEEZAZ®HRD I
W %= /97,334,000 L (= T — = F:

113,744,000/ 7T ) EREFR BT ©

BE i@¢+ﬂ+5¢¢f$

SEEMEREF (ZT—=%F:

MEEF)

FIT 45 Uk 28 tsﬁwﬁﬁlﬁ@uﬁz §210% ° K B
hERFE 2 Wz 5 Rl 549,553,000 7T &

47,781,000/ JT (—
7 7T }54,770,000% 7T)
TRER o

T — =4 : 58,974,000
MR BB REE
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Expenses by nature

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 HEMEIDZAX

e M B RRME

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR EN & 1,650 2,020
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR T Hh 70 & SR IR 5
payments (Note 17) (FIEE17) 971 923
Amortisation of intangible mILEERH
assets (Note 18) (FFEE18) 475 515
Depreciation of property, plant and M - KR RBETE
equipment (Note 15) (FIzE15) 60,245 61,016
Net exchange (gains)/losses B (k) EBEF5E (1,784) 2,280
Employee benefit expenses (including {EEEFHAX (BIEESHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (FiFEE10) 14,687 16,075
Operating lease rental KEHERS 1,647 2,100
Repair and maintenance expenses HIERRERX 3,379 2,090
Corporate expenses PERE 988 1,033
Legal and professional fees FREREEER 1,516 1,484
Management service fee EERGE 990 1,026
Other expenses HAh 10,029 10,351
Total cost of sales and administrative  $4% kA 1T E A
expenses 4aFE 94,793 100,913
Other (losses)/gains, net 7 Hib (FE) S WEELE
2014 2013
—E-mEF T =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Gain on disposal of discontinued HE BRI
operations Fris iz - 2,668
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - S NEE
plant and equipment Fris iz 389 =
Loss on disposal of an associated & — g E QA
company 518 (1,516) =
Others HAh 98 915
(1,029) 3,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

8 Finance income and costs 8 HMKWARRMEFRZR
2014 2013
—E—MF —E=—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
Finance costs: BLERKA -
— interest expense on convertible note — BRAERDIEE
wholly repayable within 5 years AR Z=4E 2 A B R (2,999) (5,724)
— interest expenses on bank — BARAFAZEL
borrowings not wholly repayable BB ZRITERZ
within 5 years MBS (45,933) (42,831)
Less: amount capitalised in construction ¥ : R TEERN L5
in progress (Note) (BsE) 11,862 1,800
Finance costs A& AR (37,070) (46,755)
Finance income: U
— interest income on bank deposits — RITERFE WA 5,319 3,351
Finance costs — net BN — F8E (31,751) (43,404)
Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the BiaE - M-Z—NF  SAAERZESEALBERE
construction of wind farms was between 6.08% and 6.55% per HRANBE BT EARER BETF6.03%%E6.55% ©
annum in 2014.
. , c -
9 Directors’ emoluments and five 9 EEMERAEZESIHES A

highest paid individuals

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director for the year

T
(a) EEM=

BEENHE_T-WOF+_A=1+

ended 31 December 2014 is set out below: —BIFEERET

Employer's

Salary & Share- contribution

other Discretionary based  to pension
Name of Director fE2:2 Fees benefits bonuses compensation scheme Total

HER BikeE
e EftER REA REBE  2BEER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET TR TR TR
OEl Kang, Eric &l 75 1,048 131 - 17 1,21
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RER 75 1,240 208 - 17 1,540
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy!" BHERO 75 - - - - 75
WANG Sing I 75 - - - - 75
TANG Siu Kui, Ernest Bk 150 - - - - 150
YU Hon To, David EE 150 - - - - 150
TIAN Yuchuan® mE/@ 150 - - - - 150
750 2,288 339 - 34 3,411

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B RRME

9 Directors’ emoluments and five 9 EEMERTREEMEA
highest paid individuals (continued) T @)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEM<E &)
The remuneration of every director for the year BEESERBEZE—=F+=ZA=+
ended 31 December 2013 is set out below: —RIEFENHFMIT
Employer's
Salary & Share- contribution
other  Discretionary based  to pension
Name of Director EE LT Fees benefits bonuses ~ compensation scheme Total
HeRk Rireits
e EftiEA BigiEa RiAfE  ZEXER &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL AL AL AL AL
OEI Kang, Eric =] 75 1,021 85 - 15 1,196
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie® RUBO 75 1,021 - 163 15 1,274
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel LS 75 1171 147 9 15 1,417
WANG Sing T 75 - - - - 75
TANG Siu Kui, Ernest Bks 150 = - = = 150
YU Hon To, David mEE 150 - - - - 150
ZHANG Songyi® REZC 46 - - - - 46
TIAN Yuchuan®) BE@ 104 - - - - 104
750 3,213 232 172 45 4,412
Notes. Htat
(1) Appointed on 1 January 2014 (1) R-ZE—NE—HA—HEZE
(2)  Retired on 1 January 2014 (2) A —E— A —HE T
(3)  Resigned on 23 April 2013 (3) T—=FMA-T=HEE
(4)  Appointed on 23 April 2013 (4) T—=FMA-t+=AEZE
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBBRSHEAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two
directors (2013: three) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2013:
two) individual during the year, which fell within
emolument band of less than HK$1 million, are as

=My === 3

FA - AEEREERHFEALTEER
Z(CE—Z=ZF:=ZR)EB=F " FFZ
MEE RN EX25 20 H KR - &
NERBRT=2(ZT—=ZF: WA)
185 A+ 2 B 48 5l 7% 4 741,000,000
BTL o ZBlE AT

follows:
2014 2013
= .k —F=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,357 1,388
Retirement scheme contributions  R{REHE| {2k 34 30
2,391 1,418
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10 Employee benefit expenses

11

PEBLRRREGRAR |

10 BEERAREX

2014 2013

—E—MF —E=—=%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FBT

Wages, salaries and other benefits ITE& - HekHEMmEn 13,156 14,364

Share-based compensation, net P&t 5 1 58 - 172
(Write back of)/provision for unused FERFERZ

annual leave (Bm) B (33) 43

Pension costs — defined contribution BIRE A
plan (Note a) — EREMHNRETE (fizka) 1,564 1,496
14,687 16,075

Notes:

(a) The Group’s contribution to the employee pension scheme in the
PRC is at a percentage in compliance with the requirements of
respective municipal governments. The Group also participates
in the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 with effect from 1
June 2014 (HK$25,000 before 1 June 2014). Contributions to the
scheme vest immediately.

(b) Contributions totaling HK$23,000 (2013: HK$23,000) were payable
under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2014.

Income tax expense

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2013:
Nil). Taxation on PRC profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at 25%, which is
the rate of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

11

wiiz -

(@) AEERFBEESEKRSHEIEL ZERTR
BEETERAREZ B D RMEL - NEBIR
BEBREIMEATESAEEA AL BB RERESE
BlEEZ EEIRHGTESE - RBESTEIR
BB EEAEE 2 ERBEFRAKGE - RIR
wESHE - BEEREESHAKRBESHEBA
BZ5%METEIfEL MR - B A ZHEBAS L
R %30,000% 7T (B=F—WF A —BER)
—ZT—MF;XA—H Z1/25,00087T) ° [
FTEIEH 2 RN SRS -

() M-ZE-—WNE+=—A=+—8 BEREST
BIET 2R A $£23,0008 T (Z2—=
£ : 23,000/ 7T) °

Fr8 %z i
HRAEBE R EERFEFN - I &R
EBNNESHIELRE (—2—=F : &)~
W TS R T AR IR F R R FERRBOEF - IR
FEEARE25%AHE ©

2014 2013

= Lk —F-=F

HK$'000 HK$°000

FHET FAETT

Withholding tax on dividends BRAR B 2B (6,906) (9,017)
Deferred income tax credit (Note 27)  EEFREHER (H7£27) 4,984 2,635
Income tax expense P8R (1,922) (6,382)

Note:
The share of income tax expense of associated companies of

HK$6,656,000 (2013: HK$10,530,000) is included in the Group’s share of
profits less losses of associated companies.

—E-—NEER

Bt

FEAEESE & A 7 2 FTiS Fi 2 H 86,656,000 T (ZF —
=4 : 10,530,000/ 7T) * Jist AREE 2 FE(HHEE A
A FRUEE ©
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11

12

Income tax expense (continued) 11 FIEHXH @)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax from AEBREFBELEEB ZAEHAIRENZ
continuing operations differs from the theoretical amount IE - MBS X EMER 2 INEFEH
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate MEAEME 2 ERTIE L ZHAT ¢
applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET Fi&IT
Profit before income tax FriS 8 A e 7 14,883 33,990
Less: Share of profits less losses e /N
of associated companies S RE 18 (45,076) (58,830)
Less: Fair value gain on derivative W ITETREBREZ
liability ATEY S (46) (2,150)
(30,239) (26,990)

Tax calculated at the domestic rates BEBBERZ % H
applicable to profits in the respective Fir it F B P 7 2R

countries sTE A 5,478 5,298
Expenses not deductible for taxation Ik

purpose X (2,594) (3,559)
Income not subject to tax BER 2 WA 1,058 1,136
Tax losses not recognised KHERZ HEER (2,050) (800)
Utilisation of previous unrecognised 5 Z Bl A HER

tax losses HIBEE - 1,067
Deferred tax on undistributed profits RO Rm A Z IEIEFTE

and fair value difference AFEEE 1,434 (507)
Reversal of deferred tax upon disposal A E —REH& A RE

of an associated company B EIRE T IE 1,658 -
Withholding tax on dividends BREAREZFEMR (6,906) (9,017)
Income tax expense e i (1,922) (6,382)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18.1% MEFHEABRER/IBA% (ZE—=F:
(2013: 19.6%). 19.6%) °
Profit attributable to equity 12 XARERGE ABERR
holders of the Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is RARBMBHRREIE 2 AR AEREE A
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to FE15% %1 £16,426,0008 T (ZF — =4 :
the extent of HK$16,426,000 (2013: loss HK$54,041,000). E51854,041,00087C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

13 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Basic

13

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BRER
(a) EXR

BRERNBN DA RRERFTEA
FE A8 5 MR PASE N B 31T & B Ak b0

FHBEE -

2014 2013
—ZT—mF —F—_=
Profit attributable to equity holders AR &kEz15A ARG 5 F
of the Company (HK$ thousand)  (F%&7t) 14,462 28,194
Weighted average number BETE R
of ordinary shares in issue INiEF 98
(thousand) (1) 2,356,372 2,356,372
Basic earnings per share BREAREF
(HK cents per share) (FRBM) 0.61 1.20

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. In 2014, the
convertible preference shares and convertible note
are assumed to have been converted into ordinary

(b) #E

SEREERNIEBAERE EAK
MEFHEE  FRAABRRRKME
ABEGCEEYE ERRDELE -
R-F—MF - AR E TR R AT
BREBRBRERD BB EB -

shares.
2014 2013
ki T =
Profit attributable to equity holders AR &@kEz15A ARG 5 F
of the Company (HK$ thousand)  (F#7T) 14,462 28,194
Weighted average number BETE R
of ordinary shares in issue INEEF 98
(thousand) (F%) 2,356,372 2,356,372
Adjustment for: AT ZIEFE :
— Assumed conversion of — R AT
convertible preference 1B SERRIE X 1R
shares (thousand) (F) 300,000 300,000
— Assumed conversion of — R ATHAR
convertible note (thousand) TR N i
(FAR) 60,177 -
Weighted average number of AR ESREE R
ordinary shares for diluted 2 AR ke T
earnings per share (thousand) (FRZ) 2,716,549 2,656,372
Diluted earnings per share BRRESERT
(HK cents per share) (FRBL) 0.53 1.06

—E-—NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

13 Earnings per share (continued) 13 BREF @)
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) &8 (&)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE_ZT—NE+_A=+—HILF
December 2014 did not assume the exercise of [ 2 TR #5882 N I R R F A i R
the share options and the subscription rights for T2 BB N AR AR (B A 2 R B
convertible preference shares outstanding during BETE REAEMTEBELR
the year since the exercise would have an anti- HEs e .

dilutive effect.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 BHE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HILF
December 2013 did not assume the exercise of the [ 2 TR #5882 N I B R AR F A E R
share options, convertible note and the subscription T BEARHE - AT IR AR Ko AT #2 IR
rights for convertible preference shares outstanding BAERzRBEBREETE  REREH
during the year since the exercise would have an IEREEREETLE -

anti-dilutive effect.

14 Dividends 14 BE
No dividend was proposed and paid for the year ended HEZZ—WF+-—A=+t—HLEFE "
31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). WEEERIDBERNEARE (ZTE—=%F:
/) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

15 Property, plant and equipment

15 Y% - SRR 1E

Group rEHE
Electricity
utility ~ Furniture,
Leasehold  plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement others equipment vehicles Total
HENE EF 50 £E
£ REM ET AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THEL TEL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-=§-f-H
Cost A 2,277 1,057,711 1,074 1,792 1,062,854
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
and impairment RRE (1644)  (128,111) (731) (1,051) (131,537
Net book amount REFE 633 929,600 343 741 931,317
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ=-F-=F+-A=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount EREFE 633 929,600 343 741 931,317
Currency translation differences — [EH A& =5 8 24,977 5 15 25,005
Additions NE - 304 15 - 319
Transfer from construction ==
in progress EEIR - 5,265 - - 5,265
Disposal HE - - (45) - (45)
Depreciation E (641)  (59,901) (104) (370)  (61,016)
Closing net book amount EREMFE - 900,245 214 386 900,845
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE-=F+=-A=1+-H
Cost BA 2,342 1,092,780 1,050 1,499 1,097,671
Accumulated depreciation ZEE
and impairment RRE (2,342)  (192,535) (836) (1,113)  (196,826)
Net book amount REFE - 900,245 214 386 900,845
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ-_E-NE+-A=t+-HBLEE
Opening net book amount ERREHE - 900,245 214 386 900,845
Currency translation differences  [EH AE =5 - (21,937) (3) (7 (21,947)
Additions AE - 9 - - 90
Transfer from construction =]
in progress EEIR - 358,540 - - 358,540
Disposal HE - - - - -
Depreciation e - (59,955) (85) (205) (60,245)
Closing net book amount EREmFE - 1,176,983 126 174 1,177,283
At 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+=-HA=+-H
Cost B - 1,424,807 1,029 1,420 1,427,256
Accumulated depreciation 2:E
and impairment SOTRED - (247,824) (903) (1,246)  (249,973)
Net book amount REFE - 1,176,983 126 174 1,177,283

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment with carrying
values of HK$1,165.0 million (2013: HK$887.0 million)
(Note 25).

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH
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1,165,000,000/ 7T (= & — = F :
887,000,000/ 70) 2 & T3 ~ #a3
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16 Construction in progress

e M B RRME

16 EEIRE

Total

@t

HK$'000

T T

At 1 January 2013 R—ZE—=%—HF—H 69,341

Currency translation differences FEHIME =58 4,640

Additions NE 183,168
Transfer to property, plant EE Y

and equipment HES R aR (5,265)

At 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=%+_-_A=+—H 251,884

At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MF—H—H 251,884

Currency translation differences fERME =58 (3,982)

Additions NE 115,209
Transfer to property, plant EE S

and equipment 2SR R A (358,540)

Transfer to prepaid land lease ERETAN T
payments HEHE (4,071)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—WNF+=-_HA=+—H 500

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the

ETROTERDBAAEBREREAESZE T (—

Group’s construction in progress with carrying values of
HK$ Nil (2013: HK$251.4 million) (Note 25).

17 Prepaid land lease payments

T — =4 : 251,400,000/ T) 2 & TR
TRR{EHR (KisE25) o

17 (L EERE

HK$’000
THT

At 1 January 2013 R—_ZE—=%—HF—H 14,319

Currency translation differences [E N8 =5 381

Adjustment Bk (630)

Amortisation g (923)

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H 13,147

At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MF—H—H 13,147

Currency translation differences fERME =5 (313)

Transfer from construction in progress #EHEREI2 4,071

Amortisation 5 (971)

At 31 December 2014 R_ZT—NF+=_A=1+—8~ 15,934

Notes: Bt -

(a)  Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s (a) HTFRITERIIBEARNEEREE1,700,000%
prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of HK$11.7 L (ZZF—=4%:12,900,0008 L) 2% T &
million (2013: HK$12.9 million) (Note 25). -+ A8 EFRIBIEE R (f5E25) ©

(b)  The prepaid land leases payments were held on lease of 50 years (b) TENITHEEREBEIDRTBEAERER+FH

in Mainland China.

HFE o
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18 Intangible assets

18 EILEE

Computer Concession
software right Total
B E M AR Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%5-HA—H
Cost B R 791 204,254 205,045
Accumulated amortisation Rt
and impairment KR E (303) (198,344) (198,647)
Net book amount BREEE 488 5,910 6,398
Year ended 31 December BE-_E-—=5+-HA=+-—H
2013 IEEE
Opening net book amount FHRMFE 488 5,910 6,398
Currency translation differences & #& =55 9 161 170
Amortisation B (112) (403) (515)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 385 5,668 6,053
At 31 December 2013 R-B-—=5+=-A=+—H
Cost DN 803 210,018 210,821
Accumulated amortisation Rt
and impairment MomE (418) (204,350) (204,768)
Net book amount IREFE 385 5,668 6,053
Year ended 31 December BE-_Z-WE+-A=+—H
2014 IEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 385 5,668 6,053
Currency translation differences [ ¥ i & =48 (7) (123) (130)
Amortisation J 44 (73) (402) (475)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 305 5,143 5,448
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 793 205,354 206,147
Accumulated amortisation 2t
and impairment NMEE (488) (200,211) (200,699)
Net book amount REFE 305 5,143 5,448

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH
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19 REEE N B 2=

19 Interests in associated companies

116

Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Group’s share of net assets AEBEELEETE 965,691 1,095,487

The following financial information,

after making

adjustments to conform with the Group’s significant

accounting policies,
share of assets,

represents the Group’s aggregate
, revenue and results of

associated companies, all of which are unlisted, and is

summarised below:

THMBER (RABARAEETEZES
BER—B) NAEEAAREBRELRE (2
MEYRILTRA) 2EE - BE - K&ER
g AT

2014 2013

—E-mF —FE—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T AT

Assets BE 1,970,072 2,333,464
Liabilities BE (1,004,381) (1,237,977)
Net assets BEFE 965,691 1,095,487
Revenue W zs 228,137 283,247
Profit for the year REE @A 45,076 58,830

Particulars of the associated companies are set out on

page 138.

Bl ZFFIBENEE138HE
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19 Interests in associated companies

(continued)

19 REEE DB 2= (@)

Set out below are the summarised financial information

for the associated companies of the Group.

THEEAKER L NR <M BER B -

Summarised income statement W 2 2R B
CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu)
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power Linyi National
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Environmental New
MEREERNRE hERERENRE MEREE (HE) Energy Co., Ltd Tota
(&) BRAR (Rd) RAR BAREBRAF ErARAERERAR it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z5-Bf - ZB-mE -T-=F Z®-@mEF -3--f CE-BE -T2 ZE-mE -T-=%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$000
TET ThL TR ThL TR ThL TET Thr TET Thr
Revenue Iz 246,637 293444 101,527 93,037 198,648 240,224 48,911 104,671 595,723 731,376
Profitloss) for the year KEREH /(E8) 64742 95562 20104 (3460 30543 51340 238 2770 MLMT 146210
Other comprehensive income £t 2ERA (27,260) 33,557 (8,991) 11,034 (24,502) 24,538 (5,530) 4241 (66,283) 73,370
Total comprehensive income 2 AW A% 37,482 129,119 1,113 7572 6,041 75,878 (3,202) 7,011 51434 219,580
Dividends received from
associated companies REBENFZRE 42,230 60,429 - 6,810 23,738 18,288 6,222 - 72,190 85,627
Summarised balance sheet EESERHM
CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu)
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power Linyi National
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Environmental New
MEREERNRE MERERENRE PR (HE) Energy Co., Ltd Total
(&) GRAR (&) GRAR BAREERAA ErPRAERERAR it
31 31 31 i 31 3 31 3 31 3
December December December December December December December December December Decembe
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z2-mF -F-ZF Z¥-MF “E-fF 30 -3-=f -3-mF -2-=F ZE-MF 3-=F
tZf  tZA tZB tzZA tZB TR tZB TR tZB  tZR
Er=f Zr=# Zr=f Z==# =B Z==F Zr=6 Z=8 =B =¥
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén Téx  TEx  TEr TRz TEr  TEn  TEr TR AR
Non-current assets ERDEE 1,756,440 1,898,891 910,276 1,000,256 1,808,410 1,988,809 - 322855 4475126 5210811
Current assets RHEE 277,039 38343 76680 93185 343073 399545 - 7513 696,792 896,208
Total assets g 2,033,479 2227234 986,956 1093441 2,151,483 2,388,354 - 397,990 5171,918 6,107,019
Non-current liabilities £t =L 109,236 119011 450,180 511,560 82,562 89,968 - 49359 641978 769,898
Current liabilities THaE 842,575 958461 126,704 182922 1,043,916 1220078 - 137204 2,013,195 2,498,665
T il B SIS AT GRG0 VUGS A0 - TS 2653 366
Net assets EERE 1,081,668 1149762 410,072 398959 1,025,005 1,078,308 - 211427 2,516,745 2,838,456

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associated companies
adjusted for any fair value adjustments made at the time

of acquisition.
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19 Interests in associated companies 19 REEEBNT 2R ®)
(continued)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information AREENREBE N EZRERERY 2%
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interests BRI it 4 BE

in its associated companies:

CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu)
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power Linyi National
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Environmental New
PERARRIEE PERARRIRE hERAE (HR) Energy Co, Ltd Total
(Bd) BRAR (Bd) ARAR BIRERRAN BrhRARRERAR Eh

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
Z3-BE - -B-BF -T--F ZB-PE
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK§000  HK$'000
Tén Thr  TEn  TEn  TEn

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z3-=F Z¥-BF -F-=F Z¥-PBF -FT-=F
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000

AL TRn  TEr  TEn  TER

At 1 January R—A-A

Opening net assets ENBRELE 1,149,762 1171717 398959 414085 1,078308 1048150 211427 217,147 2838456 2,851,099
Profit(loss) for the year KERER/(B8) 64,742 95562 20104  (3462) 30543 51340 2,328 2770 MIMT 146,210
Other comprehensive income 2 ERA (27,2600 33557 (8991) 11034  (24502) 24538 (5,530) 4241 (66,283) 73370
Dividends k& (105,576)  (151,074) - (22069) (59344)  (45,720) - (12731)  (164,920)  (232,223)
Disposal of equity

interest (Note) it ER A () - - - - - - (208,225 - (208,225) -
At 31 December Rt=A=t-H

Closing net assets ERRERE 1,081,668 1,149762 410072 398,959 1,025,005 1078308 - 211427 2516745 2838456
Reporting entities' share in % HRAZERZBEAL 40% 40% 30% 30% 40% 40% - 40% N/A N/A
Group's interests in

associated companies SERBELNAZER 432,667 459905 123,022 119688 410,002 431,323 - 84571 965,691 1,095,487
Note: Linyi National Environmental New Energy Co., Ltd was disposed Hiat - BROTHRIRIERERARERFALE - D14

during the year. The share of profit and other comprehensive
income was up to date of reclassification as assets held for sale.

EHREMGEARAEEENDEERFFELE
BEAH -
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20 Interests in subsidiaries and

20 RKB ATz R R EW 7

amounts due from/to subsidiaries B AT EhE
Company
/N

2014 2013
—E-mF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABTT
Unlisted shares, at cost JELETRRD © KA 91,771 91,771
Provision for impairment RER (79,510) (79,488)
12,261 12,283
Amounts due from subsidiaries e LB B A B 3RIE 1,464,330 1,586,173
Provision for impairment TRE R (78,839) (72,877)
1,385,491 1,513,296
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB ARxE (206,552) | (162,330)
1,191,200 1,363,249

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Their carrying amounts approximate
their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 136 to 137.
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21 Prepayments and trade and other

e M B RRME

21 ARREURERRFRE

receivables b & Uk SR
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F ZB-NE —T—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FHET FBT FHET FHET
Non-current T E
Prepayments TBRTFRIE 997 32,812 - -
Other receivables H i fE U 3k (b) 22,640 24,320 - =
23,637 57,132 - -
Current B
Trade receivables JRE LR BR 3R (a) 81,796 65,967 - =
Prepayments and TR R
other receivables b WK (b) 22,148 33,661 498 281
_..103,944 ¢ 99,628 . 498 281
127,581 156,760 498 281
Notes: HiaF

(a) At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables by the Group’s revenue recognition policy is as follows:

() R-E-—MER-—T—=F+-A=+-8
JE U AR TR AN R B IS BER USR5 M 2 R e

W :
2014 2013
—E-QmEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Less than 30 days DR30H 29,405 18,883
More than 30 days and within 60 days B30 B 1BR60H A 8,682 4,340
More than 60 days and within 90 days HiE60HER0H A 6,250 2,370
More than 90 days HBiE90H 37,459 40,374
81,796 65,967

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables by invoice due date is as follows: (Note i)

R-F-—MER-_F-—=F+-_A=+—8"
RUEFIZERINARD B2 RESTOT

(PR3
2014 2013
3 =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Less than 30 days DH30H 67,947 49,678
More than 30 days and within 60 days HA30H1BR60H A - 1,447
More than 60 days and within 90 days HBiB60H B R90H A - -
More than 90 days A0 H 13,849 14,842
81,796 65,967
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

21 Prepayments and trade and other
receivables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(d)

HEBLERRRERRAR

(continued)
Note i:

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade customers.
The electricity tariff receivables due from the government have to
go through an approval procedure before issuing invoices, which
the related receivables of which invoices were not issued as at
31 December 2014 of HK$59.0 million (2013: HK$36.1 million)
are classified as less than 30 days in the ageing analysis. Trade
receivables that are less than 30 days past due are not considered
impaired. As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of HK$13.8
million (2013: HK$16.3 million) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to the government subsidies on the electricity
tariff which have not been allocated and distributed. Based on
past experience and industry practice, these tariff premiums
are generally paid in 6 to 12 months from the date of the sales
recognition. The amount included HK$13.8 million (2013: HK$14.8
million) trade receivables on alternative energy business being
past due over 12 months. No impairment has been provided for
these receivables as the balances are not in dispute and there is
no indication that the amount will not be collectible.

Included in other receivables were input value-added taxation
recoverable of HK$37,387,000 (2013: HK$45,117,000) arising from
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepayments and trade and
other receivables is denominated in the following currencies:

21 ENFEUREWERERARE
b FE U R (&)

Hiet - (&)

(a)

(#)
Hiti :

AEEMEBSEFEB-AB=THZEE
o EUREATE BB B E A RAE
R-Z—mME+—-F=+—ARMAHEBEZENH
78 & U 3 7B /559,000,000 T (=T — =4 :
36,100,000/ 7T) RERI A IMADEARLR=
+8 - BHIR=1 8 ZBKERTHARER
B RZT—WE+-_A=1+—8  BEER
13,800,000/ 7T (= T — = 4 : 16,300,000
Br) BEMHERBE  WERBBEREAD
RERRENBRTEEME - ERNBAELRHRRIT
XEH WEEEHYP RN HEESERAH
BAANE+T_EAIMN - ZeERELAEER
HER T —EAAZEREREGERERR
13,800,000 7T (= Z — = 4F : 14,800,000/%
TT) o ARAERTS RIEMFH# - TENRETR
BRSEBTAKE - R E IS UK B
e RE R -

BT EL fth FE WK A B W TE 3 (B 837,387,000
BT (ZZTE—=4 : 45,117,000 L) * JOREH
FEEYE - ML Rkl -

N £ [ TR A5 R 08 T R M R o T L A R R 2 iR
EENATIIEREHE

2014 2013

—E-mE ZT—=F

HK$"000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Hong Kong dollars BIT 205 613
Renminbi ARKE 127,347 156,116
Singapore dollars AN T 29 31
127,581 156,760

All prepayments and trade and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above.

A bank borrowing is secured by certain of the Group’s trade

receivables with carrying values of HK$59.8 million (2013: HK$40.9
million) (Note 25).

—E-—NEER

PA 8 TR R IR % M B R R LA PR MR S
EREEE RBESAHEERRZESER
Msbu=S V)i S ol =

R 17 18 7K T B 2N £ B B T 859,800,000/ 7T
(=ZZ—=4F : 40,900,000/ 7T) 2% T FEU R
FAEEAR (Mi3E25) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 Cash and cash equivalents

e M B RRME

22 BERBEEEEY

Group Company
rEE bINNE|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—= —E-mE —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHEIT
Cash at bank and in hand $E47 R FsER S 122,247 155,978 829 1,088
Short-term bank deposits 58 #18R1T17 X 156,024 115,072 78,419 24,319
278,271 271,050 79,248 25,407
Group Company
rEE ARATH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-—MOFE == —E-OFE —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FET FHT
(a) Placedin banksin (a) 7FHRRHEZET:
the PRC:
— denominated in — UAREFE
Renminbi 81,349 106,174 - -
— denominated in — LA TTRTE
Hong Kong dollars 37,504 44,903 - =
— denominated in — LAZETEHE
US dollars 471 2,720 - -
(b) Placed in banksin  (b) TFHRAEBSZRT
Hong Kong:
— denominated in — LA TTRTE
Hong Kong dollars 1,344 1,618 360 770
— denominated in — AR E
Renminbi 157,419 115,395 78,887 24,636
— denominated in — LA AN JeEtE
Singapore dollars 2 9 - -
(c) Cash in hand (c) FER® 182 331 1 1
278,271 271,050 79,248 25,407
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

22 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date

were as follows:

22 BERBESEEY &)

REEBZBRAMEMT

2014 2013
—E—MF —_2—=
HKS$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT AR BIT AR
3.38%-
Short-term bank deposits %2 HIRIT1FR 3.79% - 2.81%

The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the
Company have original maturities of one to two months.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$119,324,000
(2013: HK$153,797,000) are held in Mainland China
and are subject to local exchange control regulations,
under which the balances could not be exported freely
out of Mainland China. The repatriation of fund out
from Mainland China is possibly conducted by way of
dividends or other means as complied to the regulations.

23 Share capital

AEBERARAB ZEBMRITERZREEA
R—EMEAR -

B AR
BFAERPFEARAEMNE S REHEFR
119,324,0007% 7t (= F — = 4F : 153,797,000
VEIL) HEBEEMINEEHIRE - B %
EEBRTBEHELRBEAKE - B ]ERB
J 2. B B 38 <7 4R 7E A9 77 20 58 e R B R B o

23 R

Non-redeemable convertible
preference shares of

Ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each

HK$0.01 each SREB01BIZ Total
SRAFNOIABTZERR THRERTRELR i
Number of Number of
Note shares  HK$'000 shares  HKS$'000  HK$'000
iz RAEE TEn RAHE TR TR
Authorised: ETE -
At 1 January 2013, 31 December R=E—=%—F—H "
2013, 1 January 2014 and =
31 December 2014 +=F=t-8"
“F-mE-A-BRk
—2-ME
+-A=t-H 9,000,000,000 90,000  6,000,000,000 60,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BREIRER
At 1 January 2013, 31 December R=E—=%-f-H"
2013, 1 January 2014 and “T-=F
31 December 2014 +=A=+-8"
“Z-mE-R-BR
—E-mE
+-A=1+-H (a), (b) 2,356,371,843 23,564 300,000,000 3,000 26,564
FEBLERRRERRAR | —E—NFEFR 123
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 23 November 2010, the Company issued and allotted
300,000,000 convertible preference shares to STAR at HK$0.65
amounting to HK$195 million to STAR for cash. STAR may at any
time during the ensuring 4 years require the Company to issue to
them a maximum of 260,000,000 additional preference shares at a
price of HK$0.75 per additional preference share. The convertible
preference shares carry rights to convert into ordinary shares at
the initial conversion rate of 1 convertible preference share to 1
ordinary share, such conversion rate being subject to customary
adjustments. The 260,000,000 additional preference shares options
were expired on 23 November 2014 and no additional preference
shares options had been exercised.

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or
officers, managers, directors or consultants of any members of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iiiy ~ the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option shall
remain open for acceptance for a period of 10 business days from
the date of offer and a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon
acceptance.

As at 31 December 2014, 1,375,000 units (31 December 2013:
6,200,000 units) of share options remained outstanding and their
weighted average exercise price was HK$0.764 per share (31
December 2013: HK$0.629 per share).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of approximately 0.05 years (31
December 2013: 1.07 years), and were lapsed subsequent to year
end date.

e M B RRME

23 B @)

(a)

RZZE—TFE+—HA=+=8 " KXAFILA0.65
7 JT [AISTAREE 17 X BL #£300,000,0004% {& (&
#3195,000,0007% 7T 2 7] 42 A% B 5t AR LA 4R BR 3R
% ° STARA R FEAR MU & R (I B R sk AR A
AIASREIMELEROTSETZEREERS
% 17260,000,000% 28 HME 55 i% o AT AR (B 5t
I8 Bt 725 e 1) BT 42 1 R AT 460 AR A S AR Y 1 AR B AR
ZAF R R R B R R
AT B HI AR o 52%5260,000,0000% £8 5)
BERBEREER=-ZT—NE+—A=+=H
[ 7 B 3t 4 BB IME 5 AR B BRAEAEAT{5E -

RARMAEEE MERKBERARIKREETR
ZEE RRITBAEBRTIEAS KB &
FHBHE R ERE -

TEEARIBATERRE

BRI B B R P B B R
SN TE

(i)

Bty BT X B HA AT T & 3% A AR
R G R RERMTFHRHE : &

(if)

iy  MBHEE -
BREENR L BB tFEREST SR
R RBEAZ REHEANTE - REREZ
BRAZEAZA A BB T EE %R s
W EREAS B TRE -

RZEBE-NWME+=-_A=+—8B: &
1,375,000 (ZE—=F+=-_A=+—Q:
6,200,0000% ) & A% A 1 R T+ i H N T
BITEEASR0.7648 T (ZE—=F+_A8
=+—H : §R0.629%7T) °

7~

M-ZE—ME+=-A=1+—HHRTEZER
EZATMETHEHNFRRL0.06F (ZF
—=®+=-A=+—8 :1.07F) - RIRFELH
BRI -
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24 Reserves

24 1#%iE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

Group NEE
Employee
share-based Convertible
Share Exchange compensation  note-equity Retained
premium reserve reserve  component earnings Total
EERG  UEREE-

RHEE Eiff HERE BERA REEF gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000

Thr ThT i T TAT T

Balance at 1 January 2013 WoE-F-F-R7H 993,505 131,439 3,112 - 562,511 1,690,567

Currency translation differences EiAEEE - 45,502 - = - 45,502
Release of exchange reserve upon HEBR IR SRR

disposal of discontinued operations LEREE - (2,668) - - - (2,668)

Employee share option benefits EEBRERT = - 172 - _ 17

Lapse of employee share option benefits ~ EEBRERFIXMN - - (1,339) - 1339 -

Profit for the year RERET - - - - 28,194 28,194

Balance at 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=t-Hz&H% 993,505 174273 1,945 - 592,044 1,761,767

Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A-RAzEs 993,505 174273 1,945 - 592,044 1,761,767

Currency translation differences ERBEEE - (41,082) - - - (41,042)

Release of exchange reserve upon HE-RBEnTkhE

disposal of an associated company HELER - (4,236) - - - (4,236)

Lapse of employee share option benefits B & BIRIERFIEN - - (1,428) - 1,428 -

Profit for the year TEFRT - - - - 14,462 14,462

Balance at 31 December 2014 RIZ-METZA=T-AzEH 993,505 128,995 517 - 607,934 1,730,951

—E-—NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

24 Reserves (continued) 24 & @
Company PN
Employee
Other  share-based  Convertible
Share Exchange reserve compensation  note-equity Retained
premium reserve (Note) reserve  component earnings Total
Rt ESRtt WRREE-
Rita® EXRE (HfsE) fRRE g REER Eh

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEL TR AR TEL TEL TEL

Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-F-Az&# 993,505 94,022 98,709 3,112 - 82,921 1,272,269
Currency translation differences EiAEES - 40,054 = - = = 40,054
Employee share option benefits REERERT - - - 172 - - 172
Lapse of employee share option benefits (& 2 EERERBH| AL - - - (1,339) - 1,339 -
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (54,041) (54,041)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RIT-=EFZA=T-Hzis 993,505 134,076 98,709 1945 - 30,219 1,258,454
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZB-ME-R-RZ&ER 993,505 134,076 98,709 1,945 - 30,219 1,258,454
Currency translation differences ERAEEE - (31,926) - - - - (31,926)
Lapse of employee share option benefits (& 2 ERERH KL - - - (1,428) - 1,428 -
Profit for the year FEERT - - - - - 16,426 16,426
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZZ-BET-A=t-AzEH 993,505 102,150 98,709 517 - 48073 1,242,954
Note: The other reserve of the Company related to an acquisition prior to Hiat - RRRZEMFEERE_TT—F—A—HATZ
1 January 2001 and continues to be held in reserves. —AWEEEAY  WHEBRERED -
. ey
25 Bank borrowings 25 RITER
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mE 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Non-current IEREN 589,892 562,236
Current VinE2) 89,911 72,258
679,803 634,494
Amounts of HK$484 million (2013: HK$568 million) of 7% #1484,000,000% Tt (= & — = &
bank borrowings issued at variable rates are secured 568,000,000 7T ) 1RIZB)F K 31T 2 R1TE
and guaranteed by fellow subsidiaries. B THEAR - W R RHE A REER -
An amount of HK$203 million (2013: HK$74 million) of A #203,000,000 T (= & — = F:
bank borrowings issued at fixed rates is secured and 74,000,000 7T) 12 [E E F F 817 2 IRITHE
guaranteed by the Company. RE TR - WHARBIEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

25 Bank borrowings (continued)

25 SRITER @)

Notes: et -
(a)  The maturity of bank borrowings at the balance sheet date is as (a) REFHRITERZEHEWAT :
follows:
2014 2013
—E-NF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Within one year —FR 89,911 72,258
In the second year F_F 89,911 79,675
In the third year to fifth year FE=FZFERF 272,234 239,026
After the fifth year hFE 227,747 243,535
679,803 634,494
2014 2013
—E—-NF —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Wholly repayable after 5 years AR AFREIER 679,803 634,494
(b)  Bank borrowings are denominated in Renminbi. (b) RITERAARMEGE -

(c) The effective interest rate for variable rate bank borrowings at
the balance sheet date was 6.37% (2013: 6.55%). The effective
interest rate for fixed rate bank borrowings at the balance sheet
date was 6.50% (2013: 6.55%).

(d) Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and
equipment, construction in progress, prepaid land lease payments
and trade receivables of the Group (Notes 15, 16, 17 and 21).

(e) The Group had an undrawn borrowing facility amounted HK$85
million as of 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$220 million).

(f) The fair value of the fixed rate bank borrowings as at 31 December
2014 is HK$200 million (2013: HK$66 million). The carrying
amounts of the remaining bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

(9) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates or maturity (whichever is

(c) “ﬂﬁﬁfﬂ%?& MEE A 2 B FIR A6.37
E — =1 : 6.55[F) - EEFEKBITHER
\,mﬁazifiﬂﬂiﬁ%esm—(f;—fi
6.55/8) °

(d) SRITERTIARNERE TYE  HBERHRE -
EEIRE - J"Eﬁiiﬁﬁ% K IE K LA AR SR B
B (KizE15 - 16~ 17/%21) °

() M-Z-—mWE+-_A=+—H0  XEBAZXK
1R EX{E 3K Bt & %8 485,000,000/ T (ZF—=
£ : 220,000,000/ 7T) °

) R-T—mE+=-/F=+—8 ' BFEFRIRT
f& 7 2 A F{& £200,000,0008 T (=T — =
£ : 66,000,000/ 7T) ° #8 T HRITERZ KRE
BEREEAFERE -

(9) MBEPRAEBEEREENEEEH 2R
BREHEEAARIIGAE ARFERE) I

earlier) at the end of the reporting period are as follows: Ik
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
6 months or less 7N E B AT 132,553 156,026
6-12 months NE+ @A 351,391 411,806
483,944 567,832
BREBRAT | —ZT—NFFR 127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26

Convertible note

The Company issued a 6.4% interest bearing convertible
note at a par value of RMB75 million (equivalent to
HK$93.2 million) on 18 December 2012 to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HKC. The note matures three years from the
issue date but can be early redeemed by both issuer and
holder at its nominal value of RMB75 million with accrued
interest or can be converted into shares at the holder’s
option on any business day during the conversion period
at HK$0.68 per share. The Company early redeemed the
convertible note at its carrying amount on 12 June 2014.

The effective interest rate as at 31 December 2013 was
6.03%.

The convertible note recognised in the balance sheet is
calculated as follows:

e M B RRME

26 TJARERE

KRR —_E——F+-_A+ \BREFEE
HEEBMBENNBRARRITEBEAARE
75,000,0007T (#8 & #293,200,0007% 7T) Z
CAEZBNHRRERE -BHEREA%ETAH
BETm=FEE  BETARBEASTIR
H [ E A R #75,000,0007TE R 251 F 815
ZIREHED - iiFE ATEERRBRBARE
A& 2B IRER0.68B T2 ERGZHIBE
Bp e RZZE—WENA+=H  ARRIR
IRECREIE R EE AT R

RZE—=Ft+RA=+—HEBRNXR
6.03F °

REEBBERBEAZIBREEAENT :

Group and Company

AEEREDF

2014 2013
—E-lmF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Face value and accrued interest AR EREE R

expenses of convertible note 25HHBFX - 101,956
Equity component of convertible note  AI#IRZEE D - -
Liability component of convertible note A= E A EED - 101,956

27 ELEFREHERE

BEEBIABESITAT

27 Deferred income tax liabilities
The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF =E==4
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHTT

Deferred tax liabilities: BREHERE :
- To be recovered after more than — R+ @A ®KE

12 months 28,529 32,354
— To be recovered within 12 months — B+ =@ A AKE 5,549 7,586
34,078 39,940
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27

28

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Deferred income tax liabilities

(continued)
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities during
the year are as follows:

27 EIEFIBHRARE @)

FR - BEEREHREBZEHNT

Group rEE
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
business  Withholding
combinations tax Total
REEBESHZ
AR EFE FEHH st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FABT BT
At 1 January 2013 R-—E—=5—HA—H (3,053) (38,493) (41,546)
Currency translation [ERRE =%
differences 364 (1,393) (1,029)
Credited to the profit or fEEmRTA
loss (Note 11) (BHaE11) 334 2,301 2,635
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=—&+=-F=+—8 (2,355) (37,585) (39,940)
At 1 January 2014 R-_E—NFE—H—H (2,355) (37,585) (39,940)
Currency translation [ERRE =%
differences 38 840 878
Credited to the profit or fEiEzmRTA
loss (Note 11) (FzE11) 334 4,650 4,984
At 31 December 2014 R-T-—pmE+=-A=+—8H (1,983) (32,095) (34,078)

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$33,470,000 (2013: HK$32,129,000) in
respect of losses amounting to HK$111,495,000 (2013:
HK$112,476,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry
dates except tax losses of HK$108,711,000 (2013:
HK$109,692,000) which expire at various dates up to
2019 (2013: 2018).

Derivative liability

The balance represents the subscription right granted to
STAR, and was fair valued at 31 December 2013 (Note
23(a)).

—E-—NEER

28

7 & B I 8§ #8111,495,0000%8 T (=
T — = : 112,476,000/8 jT) R IiE &
Fr 18 # & 33,470,000 7t (Z & — =
£ : 32,129,0007% 7T) A LA A # 4K 85 H 18
ERMBA - ZEHEEELEERAR
HY - 1E108,711,000% T (Z & — = F ¢
109,692,000/ 7T) 2 FiIBE B REZE=
E-NF(Z2E—=F:ZF—N\F) Itz
NE B HfEm e

PTETEERS
HRIERSTAREH 2 RERE - HR T —
=¥+ -_A=t+—HB®EAFEFE (K=
23(a)) °
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e M B RRME

29 Trade and other payables 29 EAERRREMENSK
Group Company
rEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—= —T-mFE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET FET FET
Trade payables FEATBR X 271 461 - -
Payables for acquisition ~ BRIBEREZME -
and construction of e N %t 2 BRI R
property, plant and
equipment 96,060 125,504 - -
Other payables and E At R R K
accruals FEEtE R 7,793 8,033 1,428 1,927
104,124 133,998 1,428 1,927

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of
trade payables is as follows:

R_E—NEFER_ZFT—=F+-_A=+—
B BAERERZERITAOT

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Less than 12 months P+ —{EH 81 215
12 months and more +=@A R E 190 246
271 461

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

7% [ FE A5 R SR R LAt B AN SR 2 BR TET (B 42 PA
TE®IIE

2014 2013

—E-F —E—=F

HK$'000 HK$’'000

THET FET

Hong Kong dollars BT 2,380 2,843
Renminbi AR 101,706 131,115
Singapore dollars T 38 40
104,124 133,998

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the other payables of
the Company are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

R-E-—NEER_E—=F+_A=+—
B AREZE RN ZKASTTEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

(a)

30 Commitments 30 &iE
Capital commitments (a) EXREE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but REZBEREERREEZEARRA
not yet incurred was as follows: X
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E—=fF
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Capital expenditure in respect of HREZKERIER
alternative energy projects: ZEARRY :
Contracted but not provided for BT 4{BREE 2,117 141,351
Authorised but not contracted for ZZ#EE KT - -
2,117 141,351

(b)

PEBLRRREGRAR |

Commitments under operating leases
The aggregate future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of land and buildings were as follows:

(b) EEEHEER T 2&RE
BIBERL I RS T T AT E
BEERREN 2 RERSEBEMT -

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E2—mEF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FABTT
No later than 1 year —FR 935 789
Later than 1 year and —FREAFR
no later than 5 years 525 1,343
1,460 2,132

—E-—NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B RRME

31 Related party transactions 31 AR S

The Group entered into transactions with the following
related parties for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013.

(a) Administrative services fee, which includes the
office overhead, and reimbursement of cost of
internal audit, legal and information technology
department of HK$990,000 (2013: HK$1,026,000)
was paid to HKC.

(b) Office rental of HK$684,000 (2013: HK$926,000)
was paid to HKC.

The above related party transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.33 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

(c) Key management compensation
Key management solely represents directors of the

Company. The compensation paid or payable to key
management is shown as below:

BE_Z—NFR-_FB-—=F+"A=+—
HIEFE  AEBESETIIMEETETZL 2R
ST o

(@) MBEBEXRIMNTHRRBER 231F
WAERERL URENREE
& AR R E BB EBFIA Z8990,000
BT (ZZT—=% : 1,026,000&7T) °

(b) MBEBERZMIAEFHEE684,000/5

5T (ZE—=4 : 926,000 7T ) °

FA B RSB RATE A TR A
([ E# A1) $14A.331K & Al B 24 G 38 <F
ERHER FTEEZ  AERBIRRIME
MEZIFEBERERS -

(c) EEEEABRZRM

TEEEABRRARAES B
HENEEEEAB ZRMNETINAT

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits o REMEF 2,627 3,445

Directors’ fees EEHE 750 750

Share-based compensation, net B #{E F2E - 172
Pension cost — defined RINESKA — T8

contribution scheme Mt 34 45

3,411 4,412

(d) As at 31 December 2014, the Group provided
guarantee to counter parties in respect of credit
facilities granted to certain associated companies
of HK$150,060,000 (2013: HK$164,978,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Company provided
guarantee to counter parties in respect of credit
facilities granted to a wholly owned subsidiary of
HK$202,581,000 (2013: HK$74,176,000).

The transactions did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(d) RZZ—HEmFE+=-A=+—H' ' &
EpETHEAERZEEREN
¥ F H R 1R 150,060,000/%8 T (=
T— =1 : 164,978,000/67T) °

R-ZT—ME+—_F=+—H  &XAF
R—REEFEENBLATERZEER
& R ¥ F 5 HR A& 1R202,581,000/%8 7T
(ZZT—=% : 74,176,000/57T) °

BERXZALTEK EMARAF14ATH
REZHERS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

32 Notes to consolidated cash flow 32 REBEELRERMNE

statement
Reconciliation of profit before income BB EREFTAREZ
tax to cash used in operations AR
2014 2013
—E—MEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Profit before income tax Fr 54 A e Al 14,883 33,990
Finance costs & R A 37,070 46,755
Finance income B A (5.319) (3,351)
Depreciation and amortisation e R 61,691 62,454
Gain on disposal of discontinued Hj’%a,%%ﬁ%«%ﬁﬁk
operations TS a - (2,668)
Gain on disposal of property, plant Hj’ift%% 22 K 5 A
and equipment B (389) =
Loss on disposal of an associated Hj’%—ﬁﬂﬂéﬁ%@ﬁ?
company Eia 1,516 -
Share of profits less losses of FE (5 B & 1 A& AR &S 15
associated companies (45,076) (58,830)
Fair value gain on derivative liability PTETHBEZ A TERER (46) (2,150)
Other gain H g s (98) -
Waiver of other payable e HAb R R - (915)
Share-based compensation, net AR D F (& E 58 - 172
Operating profit before working BB FEFIZ
capital changes K A 64,232 75,457
Decrease/(increase) in inventory ZER ///(i‘jju) 414 (182)
Decrease in trade and other receivables &4 BR 7k 5 H b & Uk R 8,981 51,650
Decrease in trade and other payables }*HEE K Kz EL A fE A~ FORL A (206) (9,084)
Cash generated from operations REMSHE 73,421 117,841

TEBLERRREGRAR | —F-HFFH 133



134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BB RHMIEE

33 Financial instruments by category 33 ®ZEREI s zE€mIA

Group AEE
Loans and
receivables
&0 EN
HK$'000
THT
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet BRaREEEBRITREE
31 December 2013 —T—=&#+—-A=+—H
Trade and other receivables (Note 21) JE L B R e HL b PSR (BT EE21) 123,948
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) ReRBESEFEY (H5E22) 271,050
Total K 394,998
31 December 2014 —E—mFE+-_A=1+—H
Trade and other receivables (Note 21) JFE L B SR e L b PSR (BT E21) 126,584
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) ReRBRSEFED (H5E22) 278,271
Total #st 404,855
Liabilities at
fair value Financial
through liabilities at
profit or amortised
loss cost
RAFE REHERE
ERER SR Z Total
SRz & E SRIBE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHT
Liabilities as per consolidated Rz EESRE
balance sheet RFIREE
31 December 2013 —E—=%F+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 25) R1T1EK (FIE25) - 634,494 634,494
Convertible note (Note 26) AR EE (FiiE26) - 101,956 101,956
Derivative liability (Note 28) PTETEBE (FizF28) 36 - 36
Trade and other payables JFEE 1T BR 5K R L A JE T 5K
(Note 29) (ft3E29) = 133,998 133,998
Total a5t 36 870,448 870,484
31 December 2014 —E-NFE+-_A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 25) RITE R (KizE25) - 679,803 679,803
Convertible note (Note 26) AR RS (Fi7E26) - - -
Derivative liability (Note 28) PTETAEBE (FizF28) - - -
Trade and other payables P AT BR R R L A A5 5k
(Note 29) (ft3E29) - 104,124 104,124
Total a5t - 783,927 783,927
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

33 Financial instruments by category 33 ®ZRERE T2/ I A @)

(continued)
Company ARTH
Loans and
receivables
7958 EN
HK$'000
FAET
Assets as per balance sheet REESBRTEE
31 December 2013 —E—=F+-A=+—H
Other receivables (Note 21) E e loR (FesE21) 281
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 20) FEUS BT A R 3k IE (F93E20) 1,513,296
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) RERNSFEY (KF:E22) 25,407
Total 1A=t 1,538,984
31 December 2014 —E—NFE+—-A=+—H
Other receivables (Note 21) HoAth pE R (BitaE21 498
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 20) FELR T B8 A RIFk A (Mf3E20) 1,385,491
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) RekBEEEY ([:E22) 79,248
Total Bt 1,465,237
Liabilities at
fair value Financial
through liabilities at
profit or amortised
loss cost
BRATFE REBHAK
ERRR p1): Total
IRz B E SRIBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHE T FBT FBT
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEABERITERE
31 December 2013 —E—=F+-A=+—H
Convertible note (Note 26) AT =R (Fi7E26) = 101,956 101,956
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note 20) FEfTMIE A 1738 (F:E20) = 162,330 162,330
Derivative liability (Note 28) PTETABRE (M:E28) 36 - 36
Other payables (Note 29) H e R (Fi7E29) = 1,927 1,927
Total 4t 36 266,213 266,249
31 December 2014 —E—UFE+=-HF=+—H
Convertible note (Note 26) AR EHE (K15E26) - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note 20) EfHHIBRA 7FE (F:E20) - 206,552 206,552
Derivative liability (Note 28) PTETHEBE (FiE2s) - - -
Other payables (Note 29) HAb AR (FiEE29) - 1,428 1,428
Total “act - 207,980 207,980
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Principal subsidiaries and

associated companies

Listed below are the subsidiaries and associated
companies which, in the opinion of the directors,

e M B RRME

34 TEMBRRARBE QT

principally affect the result and/or net assets of the Group.

TR EERREAEDEER HEE
FEBRTIEXEZHBARRBE AR -

Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity/
operation and Paid up Paid up registered
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities  registered capital capital held
BMAYL /S UR BRTRA FrisEs /&4
28 ERERERY TEXK BAEMES aMEXEDL
2014 2013
“E-NE —T-=F
Subsidiaries
WEAR
Best Whole Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
REERER A A BA REER BT
Joy Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
HEEREAES BEER 1=
Hong Kong New Energy Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1,000 100% 100%
(Si Zi Wang Qi 1) Wind Power Limited*
BANER (DT EHE=8) R aR A A Bk REER 1,000
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
FERR (K1) ZERER AR Bk REER iy
HKE (Wind Power) Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BAMER (BRE) BRERAR RERIES REER 17T
China Renewable Energy (Services) Limited ~ Hong Kong Human resources HK$1 100% 100%
management
HEBERR (BR) BRAR Bk AERER iy
HKE Danjinghe (BVI) Wind Power Limited**  British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1,000 100% 100%
BAMBRE SR (BV)REBR AR B A REER 1,000% 7T
HKE (BVI) Limited** British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BAEMERBV)ERAR B A REER 1=
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
BEMRR (BE) BaeARAR" B/ HE REER BT
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34 Principal subsidiaries and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BI#E3RRMIaE

3 TENBARIREBE QT

associated companies (continued) (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity/
operation and Paid up Paid up registered
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities  registered capital capital held
HMARY/ EEhHR BRTRE s /B
1 EEERER TEXH BAEMEX SMEXEDL
2014 2013
ZE2-mE “T-=F
Subsidiaries
WEAE
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 100% 100%
Wind Power Limited*
FaAaeR (W1 IE) BEaRAR! &%/ HE REER 28T
HKC (Linyi) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
FRER (Br) sRERAR! &%/ HE REER 1R
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$4 100% 100%
FRARR (BR0) RetERAR &%/ HE REER 4B
Sinoriver International Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BB BRAR EBEIES /FE REER E
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) Limited*  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 100% 100%
BB (BE) BRAR! &%/ HE REER 20T
APC Wind Power Pte Limited** Singapore Investment holding SGD10 100% 100%
s REER 10FT I T
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) PRC/ Wind Power project HK$100,000,000 86% 86%
Company Ltd.** Sino-foreign equity in Heilongjiang,
joint venture the PRC
SHEARE (L) BRAR HE /N ERE RAEERELLZ 100,000,000% 7T
BABEER
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Co. Ltd.**  PRC/ Wind Power project HK$150,100,000 86.68% 86.68%
Sino-foreign equity in Heilongjiang,
joint venture the PRC
BRRNKE (BK) ARAA hE/HRELE ROBEET 150,100,000 ¢
BABEER
BRI T TR AR AR PRC/ Wind Power project RMB 166,480,000 100% 100%
Sino-foreign equity in Siziwang Qi,
joint venture Inner Mongolia,
the PRC
mE /RN ERE RPeBRSEENFER ARE
ZENEEEA 166,480,000
BRI T EEREERAR PRC/ Wind power project RMB172,526,500 100% 100%
Sino-foreign equity in Siziwang Qi,
joint venture Inner Mongolia,
the PRC
RE /N ERE RABERF AT i AEE
ZENEERES 172,526,5007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Principal subsidiaries and

e M B RRME

34 TEMBRARAIRBEQT

associated companies (continued) (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity/
operation and Paid up Paid up registered
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities  registered capital capital held
BRI/ EEHER BRITRE/ FrisEs /B4
£ ERERELY TEXH BAMmER SMERE DL
2014 2013
“g-mEF T =%
Associated companies
BENT
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company PRC/ Wind power project RMB545,640,000 40% 40%
Limited*# Sino-foreign equity in Danjinghe,
joint venture Hebei, the PRC
HEREARENEE (Rit) BRAR HE HINEERE RARETILERT 2 AR
EH%EEEA 545,640,000
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company PRC/ Wind power project RMB323,260,000 30% 30%
Limited*# Sino-foreign equity in Lunaobao,
joint venture Hebei, the PRC
HETREBRE N EE (/L) BRAR e HIEERE Nz EEiDEblgo S (D AR
EH%EEEA 323,260,0007T
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power PRC/ Wind power project RMB589,620,000 40% 40%
Company Limited*#* Sino-foreign equity in Changma,
joint venture Gansu, the PRC
HEfREAR (HE) RAZEESERAR HE G ERE RPEH®RESZ AR
EH%EEA 589,620,0007T
Linyi National Environmental New Energy ~ PRC/ Waste-to-energy RMB100,000,000 - 40%
Co., Ltd.+#* Sino-foreign equity project in Linyi,
joint venture Shandong, the PRC
BT RIRAT AR AR A F HE HINEERE RABE IR AR
HREERA 100,000,0007C
Remarks: #it
& Interest held by subsidiaries * #zEMEARREE
# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers # I S R S F KB & TR B S T X
O Unofficial English transliterations or translations for identification 0 FEER B FRBNENE - EH-BR

purpose only.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBERBE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mF ZT—=F ZT—=—F ZT——F ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
FET FABTT FABIT FAEIT FAETT
Consolidated statement of  4Z&Z2EUARE
comprehensive income
Revenue Wz
Continuing operations FEICE TS 97,334 113,744 99,513 89,897 17,897
Discontinued operations BRI SR - = = 792 6,213
97,334 113,744 99,513 90,689 24,110
Profit/(loss) before RS ianas
income tax (E518)
Continuing operations FE I E T 14,883 33,990 (110,367) (4,317) 365,233
Discontinued operations BRI ER - = 100 (3,486) (5,513)
14,883 33,990 (110,267) (7,803) 359,720
Income tax (expense)/ e (),
credit Eiinod
Continuing operations SRS TS (1,922) (6,382) 15,648 12,369 (25,399)
Discontinued operations BRI E R - = = = 1,003
(1,922) (6,382) 15,648 12,369 (24,396)
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHF
(E#E)
Continuing operations SIS TS 12,961 27,608 (94,719) 8,052 339,834
Discontinued operations BRI EER - - 100 (3,486) (4,510)
12,961 27,608 (94,619) 4,566 335,324
Non-controlling interests FEIERR HERS 1,501 586 11,877 8,630 987
Profit/(loss) attributable RARIERFEBA
to equity holders of the FEfR=F
Company (&)
Continuing operations SR TS 14,462 28,194 (82,842) 16,682 340,821
Discontinued operations BRI ER - - 100 (3,486) (4,510)
14,462 28,194 (82,742) 13,196 336,311
Consolidated balance sheet GABERAEE
Net current assets REBEEE 194,337 69,001 193,900 198,589 265,317
Non-current assets EmENEE 2,188,493 2,324,548 2,120,406 2,293,555 2,231,471
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (623,970) (602,176) (593,793) (684,653) (815,741)
Net assets including BEFEBE
non-controlling interests e 1,758,860 1,791,373 1,720,513 1,807,491 1,681,047
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY F F B & & L=

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF —T—=F _T——F ZT——F FE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T T T
Share capital RN 26,564 26,564 26,564 26,564 25,422
Reserves s 1,730,951 1,761,767 1,690,567 1,765,718 1,631,945
Non-controlling interests JEIERRRE RS 1,345 3,042 3,382 15,209 23,680
Total equity T 1,758,860 1,791,373 1,720,513 1,807,491 1,681,047
Earnings/(loss) per share FRER (EE)
— basic — &R
Continuing operations BRI ERS 0.61 1.20 (3.51) 1.42 40.2
Discontinued operations BRI EER - = = (0.30) (0.53)
0.61 1.20 (8.51) 1.12 39.67
Dividend per share B E
— attributable to the year — RFEEZENL NilfE Nil Nil £ Nil4E Nil &
Return on total equity (note) #fEZi4A%E [0 H =
(BF5E) 0.74% 1.54% (5.5%) 0.3% 19.9%
Note: Kzt -

Return on total equity represents the current year's profit/loss for the year

expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.

RERELNRER/AFERT HRAHERFEFLER
BBZBDL ©
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